

GIGABIT MANAGED POE SWITCH





DN-95351

DN-95352

User Manual

Manual Description

This user guide is provided for using this type of switch. The manual includes the switch performance and function. Please read this manual before managing the device:

Intended Audience

This guide is intended for network administrators familiar with IT concepts and network terminology.

SAFETY NOTICES

Do not use this product near water, for example, in a wet basement or near a swimming pool. Avoid using this product during an electrical storm. There may be a remote risk of electric shock from lightning.

Contents

Chapter1: Login the Device
1.1 Login the device6
1.2 Functional Overview
Chapter 2: System
2.1 The Home page
2.2 System Information
2.3 Interface IP
2.4 HTTP Port
2.5 Console
2.6 System Time Config 11
2.7 System Update 12
2.8 Backup/Recovery
2.9 Load Default 13
2.10 Reboot
2.11 Show Cli Running
2.12 Password
Chapter 3: SNMP 15
3.1 Understanding SNMP 15
3.2 Basic Config
3.3 Community 19
3.4 Management Station 20
3.5 V3Engine ID 20
3.6 V3Group Config 21
3.7 V3User Config
3.8 V3View Config
Chapter 4: Port Management
4.1 Port Configuration

	4.2 Port Statistics	5
	4.3 Band Resrtricting 2	5
	4.4 Port Description 2	6
	4.5 Storm Control 2	6
	4.6 POE	8
,	Chapter 5: Redundancy 2	9
	5.1 Link Aggregation	2
	5.2 LACP	3
	5.3 Smart /Monitor Link	4
	5.4 RRPP	7
	5.5 STP/RSTP/MSTP 4	2
	Chapter 6: Security	7
	6.1 ACL	7
	6.2 VLAN	1
	6.3 MAC Config	5
	6.4 IEEE802.1x	8
	6.5 DHCP	4
	6.6 ARP	4
	Chapter 7: QoS	6
	7.1 Qos Information9	1
	7.2 DSCP Queue Mapping9	12
	7.3 802.1p-Queue Mapping9	13
	7.4 Port Default Priority9	4
	7.5 Queue Scheduling	15
	Chapter 8: Multicast	15
	8.1 IGMP Snooping	19
	8.2 Cross VLAN	0
	8.3 IGMP Route Port	0
	8.4 IGMP Port Policy	1
	8.5 IGMP Group Policy	12
,	Chapter 9: Network Analysis	3

	9.1 Traffic Counter	103
	9.2 Port Mirror	103
	9.3 Ping	105
	9.4 Log	105
Cha	pter10: Network Equipment	106
	10.1 Loopback Detection	106
Cha	pter11: Advanced Setup	107
	11.1 GVRP	107
	11.2 SSH	110
	11.3 Web Cli	112
Cha	pter 12: Save Parameters	113
Cha	pter 13: FAQ	113
	13.1 Link status indicator don't shows normal (Link-Error)	113
	13.2 Link status indicator show normal but can't communication	113
	13.3 Can't login to manage switch	114
	13.4 Switch start-up failure	114
	13.5 Power failure	115

The Management switch is managed via WEB pages. The smart and friendly interfaces make the switch management an easy job. You can use the web browser-based configuration to manage switch. The switch to be configured through a web browser, at least a reasonable allocation of computer through an Ethernet connection to the switch.



Figure 1-1

Chapter 1: Login the Device

The machine-default IP address is **192.168.2.11**, subnet mask is **255.255.0**. So when you log on to the switch, make sure the IP address of the computer network card and the IP of the switch in the same network segment: 192.168.2. *** (1 <*** <255, *** is not equal to 11). Reference to the following steps to set up:

1.1 Login the device

1. Open IE browser, enter http://192.168.2.11 in the address bar, then return.





2. In the pop-up window to enter **user name: guest, password: guest**, then press the OK button

Connect to 192.1	68.2.11 🛛 🛛 🔀
	G P
user	
User name:	🔮 guest 💌
Password:	•••••
	Remember my password
	OK Cancel

Figure 1-1-2

NOTES:

If you are successful login into the switch webpage, the page from time to time automatically refresh, allowing you to dynamically view the port status.

1.2 Functional Overview

The switch have rich feature , including the functions of system management, SNMP management, Port Management, Redundancy management, Security management, QoS management, Multicast management, Network Analysis, Network Equipment , and Advanced Setup, next chapter will introduce you these functions.



Figure 1-2-1

Chapter 2: System

2.1 The Home page

After logging into the switch, the main page appears as the following. It contains three parts:

100		100 C 40 100 100 100		welcome (parent 1
SG3226F	> Function Int	reduction			
> System	Part St.	allaliza	C. Port Approaction		
- System Infor		e traffic stautes of every part.	Link apprepation control proto	cel (LACP) can	
+ Interface IP	_		improve bandwaith and socari	gaton, ma wa ty.	
+ HTTP Port	VIAN		Part Himor		
- Console	The VLA	W can cantrol broadcasts in LANs and n multiple physical spaces.	The extense capys packats from destination parts you can use	searce parts to	
- System Time	Config Can spar	n multiple physical spaces.	destination parts, you can use mentar traffic or trouble shoe	the near to ting.	
- System Upda		ck Detection			
- Backup/Reco	ery (CA) Dumine	no there is loss or not in network			
- Load Default	under th configur	re port, and deal it by user's when.			
+ Reboot					
- Show Cli Run					
- View User Inf	rmation				
> SNMP					
Port Manag	ement				
Redundance	1				

Figure 2-1-1

zone"1": The Port LED Indicator table lies at the top of the page. It provides a visual representation of the ports. The green icon indicates that the port is linked; the gray icon indicates that the port is not linked;

zone"2": On the left side of the page is the menu table. It contains 10 main menus. Each menu has some submenus. Click on a menu, it will open its submenus and the main window.

zone"3": The main part of the page is the main window to display the configuration page.

2.2 System Information

Click on the "System ", the switch manage page will show as figure below, The system submenu have basic information, including: system information, Interface IP, HTTP Port, Console, System Time Config, System Update, Backup/Recovery, Load Default, Reboot, Show Cli Running, User Information;. The following picture is the detailed description.

	3.2			IIII	-
SG3228FF	B Horse Reboat Sh	ow G Ranning View Uper Information	in Syden Strendon		welcome guest I coll
00011011	System Information				
> System		Mdress: 68-18-55-63-68-20			
- System Inform	01				
- Interface IP		Notion: \$63326FP_VL8.2019.18.30.14	11		
+ HTTP Part	Rannie	g Time: 0 Day 0 Hour 23 Minute			
+ Console	0.000	4 Time: 2012-08-19 22:22:01			
+ System Time C	fig				
+ System Update	CPU Occupan	cy rate: 34,74%			
- Backup/Recov		Refresh			
+ Load Default		Refresh			
- Reboat					
- Show Cli Runn					
- View User Info	roots				
> SNMP					
Port Manage	ent				
Redundancy					
> Security					
1005					

Figure 2-2-1

The System Information shows the system information of the switch, such as model, MAC address, , hardware and software version information, Running Time, Current Time, CPU Utilization Rate.

2.3 Interface IP

SG3226FP	Home Show Cli Ranning View User Information Stytem Information Interface 9	welcome guest ! cal
	1P Address Configuration	
> System	IP Address:	
 System Information 		
 Interface IP 	Sabmaski *	
+ HTTP Part	VUAN ID:	
 Console 	Node: Privary O Secondary	
 System Time Config 		
 System Update 	OK	
 Backup/Recovery 		
 Load Default 	Gateway Cooligaration	
 Rebost 	Gareway Camputation	
 Show Cli Running 	Galaxyey: 192.108.2.1 *	
 View User Information 		
> SNMP	Add Delete	
Port Management		
Redundancy	VLAN Interface Configuration	
> Security		
² QoS	VLAN ID: *	

Figure 2-3-1

On this page you can manually set the IP address, subnet mask, gateway and other information; can also use your network, among

other DHCP SERVER switch automatically assigns an IP address. The switch default IP address is: 192.168.2.11 default subnet mask: 255.255.0 Default Gateway: no. When finished editing, click the "OK" to complete the IP address settings.

Notes:

(1)When you select "DHCP Settings" is disabled, the switch will have to manually assign an IP address.

(2)When DHCP client is enabled, the IP parameters are obtained automatically from the DHCP server.

2.4 HTTP Port

This page provides the configuring HTTP Port.

		-
SG3226FP	Brane Briteface IP (#) HTTP Port E HTTP Port Configuration	welcome guest !
> System	HTTP Ports 80	
+ System Information	NUMBER OF	
+ Interface IP	OK	
+ HTTP Part		
+ Console		
+ System Time Config		
+ System Update		
 Backup/Recovery 		
 Load Default 		
+ Reboot		
 Show Cli Running 		
 View User Information 		
) SNMP		
Port Management		
Redundancy		
> Security		
) QoS		

Figure 2-4-1

You are kindly suggested to type the HTTP Port, default is 80. Caution:

Only numbers can be input into Port. The other characters are considered illegal. The initial port is 80.

Notes:

After modifying the HTTP Port, for example, if you change the port as 8080, than you need use ip of 192.168.2.11:8080 in the address bar, then return.

2.5 Console

SG3226FP	Trans Interface 19-38 ATTIP Port (8) Commit C	welcome guest !
> System	Data Mtx: 8	
+ System Information		
+ Interface IP	Step bits: 1	
+ HTTP Port	Parity check: name	
+ Console	Plaw control _ none	
+ System Time Config		
+ System Update	Baad rote(bps): 115200	
 Backup/Recovery 		
+ Load Default		
+ Reboot		
+ Show Cil Running		
+ View User Information		
> SNMP		
Port Management		
Redundancy		
> Security		
> QoS		



The figure shows the switch connected information for user to configure through the console.

2.6 System Time Config



Figure 2-6-1

You can adjust the time to the local through the option. Click "OK" When you have corrected the time.

2.7 System Update



Figure 2-7-1

Browse the right file you need to complete the update , it will spent about 2 minutes to finish .Make sure the power is on and do not restart during the updating program .when it shows that is successful you can restart the switch.

2.8 Backup/Recovery

`		1
1	8 Home Cossele (iii) System Time Config (iii) System Update (iii) Baddag Recovery at	welcome guest ! exi
SG3226FP	Backup Parameters	
> System		
+ System Information	Desnibad	
+ Interface IP	Recover Parameters	
+ HTTP Part		
+ Console		
 System Time Config 	System Parameters File : 2020-	
+ System Update	OK	
+ Backup/Recovery		
+ Load Default		
 Reboot 		
+ Show Cli Running		
+ View User Information		
) SNMP		
Port Management		
Redundancy		
> Security		
) QoS		

Figure 2-8-1

In this step you can recovery the system of the switch if you want to back to the old system. And you need to load the software you refresh just now.

2.9 Load Default

		-1- - 1 -
SG3226FP	B Home System Time Config (k) System Update (k) Backup/Recovery (k) Load Default (2)	welcome guest ! e
	To restore the default parameters	
> System	OK	
+ System Information		
+ Interface IP	Attention:	
+ HTTP Port	1. The configuration of the switch will be factory default after loading default, and your configuration will be lost.	
+ Console	2.Please reboot the switch when you click "OK". the default parameters will take affect after restarting.	
+ System Time Config		
+ System Update		
 Backup/Recovery 		
+ Load Default		
 Reboot 		
+ Show Cli Running		
+ View User Information		
> SNMP		
Port Management		
> Redundancy		
> Security		
2 QoS		

Figure 2-9-1

In this step you will restore the factory setting. The operation would delete the current configuration and irrecoverable! Are you sure to recover default configuration? Click 'Ok' to recover default configuration, and then reboot the switch to make it effect!

2.10 Reboot

On this page you can reboot the switch and return to the login page .Please save the current configuration before reboot or you will lose the configuration.

SG3226FP	🖥 Tissee System Update 🔟 Backup/Recovery 🔛 Load Dafasit 🐑 🔽 Zabard 🖸	welcome guest ! exit
> System	OK	
+ System Information		
+ Interface IP	Attention:	
+ HTTP Port	1. This operation will cause the switch restart, the communications of system will interrupt temporary .Please confirm it's necessary.	
+ Console	2.Recommend that backup your configuration before reboot,	
 System Time Config 		
+ System Update		
 Backup/Recovery 		
+ Load Default		
+ Reboot		
+ Show Cli Running		
 View User Information 	n	
> SNMP		
> Port Management	t	
> Redundancy		
> Security		
) QoS		

Figure 2-10-1

2.11 Show Cli Running

On this page you can get the running config of this switch.



Figure 2-11-1

2.12 Password

This page provides the interface of configuring password.

					1
100	B Home Backup/Receivery	Load Default 😥 Reboot 🗉	Wen User Information	0	welcome guest ! c
SG3226FP	User Authentication Configuration				
> System					
+ System Information	Usernar	Nei IIII			
+ Interface IP	Passwo	vd:	•		
 HTTP Port 	Lev	et V	(Level 1 user has no a	ccess configuration and 15 level users have	
+ Console			permission to configure	ε.)	
+ System Time Config		Add			
 System Update 					
 Backup/Recovery 	View User Information				
+ Load Default					
 Reboot 	Usemame	Password	Level	Del	
+ Show Cli Running	Quest A total of 1 Per page show	* 10 ♥ First Prev Next I	15	/ 3	
 View User Information 	A GIGN OF 1 Per page show	10 V HIST PIEV NEXt (1812 1 *		
³ SNMP					
> Port Management					
Redundancy					
> Security					
> 0oS					



You are kindly suggested to retype the new password in "Confirm new password" box instead of copying in order to avoid typing mistakes.

Caution:

Only letters, numbers and punctuations can be input into username and password. The other characters are considered illegal. The length of password ranges from 1 to 16 characters. The initial password is guest

Notes:

After modifying the password with immediate effect, the parameters will not be lost though is powered off

Chapter 3: SNMP

3.1 Understanding SNMP

SNMP is an application-layer protocol that provides a message format for communication between managers and agents. The SNMP system consists of an SNMP manager, an SNMP agent, and a MIB. The SNMP manager can be part of a network management system (NMS) such as Cisco Works. The agent and MIB reside on the switch. To configure SNMP on the switch, you define the relationship between the manager and the agent.

The SNMP agent contains MIB variables whose values the SNMP manager can request or change. A manager can get a value from an agent or store a value into the agent. The agent gathers data from the MIB, the repository for information about device parameters and network data. The agent can also respond to a manager's requests to get or set data.

An agent can send unsolicited traps to the manager. Traps are messages alerting the SNMP manager to a condition on the network. Traps can mean improper user authentication, restarts, link status (up or down), MAC address tracking, closing of a TCP connection, loss of connection to a neighbor, or other significant events.

SNMP Versions

This software release supports these SNMP versions:

- SNMPv1—The Simple Network Management Protocol, a Full Internet Standard, defined in RFC 1157.
- SNMPv2C replaces the Party-based Administrative and Security Framework of SNMPv2Classic with the community-string-based Administrative Framework of SNMPv2C while retaining the bulk retrieval and improved error handling of SNMPv2Classic. It has these features:
 - SNMPv2— Version 2 of the Simple Network Management Protocol, a Draft Internet Standard, defined in RFCs 1902 through 1907.
 - SNMPv2C— The community-string-based Administrative Framework for SNMPv2, an Experimental Internet Protocol defined in RFC 1901.
- SNMPv3—Version 3 of the SNMP is an interoperable standardsbased protocol defined in RFCs 2273 to 2275. SNMPv3 provides secure access to devices by authenticating and encrypting packets over the network and includes these security features:

 Message integrity—ensuring that a packet was not tampered with in transit

Authentication—determining that the message is from a valid source

– Encryption—mixing the contents of a package to prevent it from being read by an unauthorized source.

Both SNMPv1 and SNMPv2C use a community-based form of security. The community of managers able to access the agent's MIB is defined by an IP address access control list and password. SNMPv2C includes a bulk retrieval mechanism and more detailed error message reporting to management stations. The bulk retrieval mechanism retrieves tables and large quantities of information, minimizing the number of round-trips required. The SNMPv2C improved error-handling includes expanded error codes that distinguish different kinds of error conditions; these conditions are reported through a single error code in SNMPv1. Error return codes in SNMPv2C report the error type.

SNMPv3 provides for both security models and security levels. A security model is an authentication strategy set up for a user and the group within which the user resides. A security level is the permitted level of security within a security model. A combination of the security level and the security model determine which security mechanism is used when handling an SNMP packet. Available security models are SNMPv1, SNMPv2C, and SNMPv3.

SNMP Community Strings

SNMP community strings authenticate access to MIB objects and function as embedded passwords. In order for the NMS to access the switch, the community string definitions on the NMS must match at least one of the three community string definitions on the switch. A community string can have one of these attributes:

- Read-only (RO)—Gives read access to authorized management stations to all objects in the MIB except the community strings, but does not allow write access
- Read-write (RW)—Gives read and write access to authorized management stations to all objects in the MIB, but does not allow access to the community strings

SNMP Notifications

SNMP allows the switch to send notifications to SNMP managers when particular events occur. SNMP notifications can be sent as traps or inform requests. In command syntax, unless there is an option in the command to select either traps or informs, the keyword traps refers to either traps or informs, or both. Traps are unreliable because the receiver does not send an acknowledgment when it receives a trap, and the sender cannot determine if the trap was received. When an SNMP manager receives an inform request, it acknowledges the message with an SNMP response protocol data unit (PDU). If the sender does not receive a response, the inform request can be sent again. Because they can be re-sent, informs are more likely than traps to reach their intended destination.

The characteristics that make informs more reliable than traps also consume more resources in the switch and in the network. Unlike a trap, which is discarded as soon as it is sent, an inform request is held in memory until a response is received or the request times out. Traps are sent only once, but an inform might be re-sent or retried several times. The retries increase traffic and contribute to a higher overhead on the network. Therefore, traps and informs require a trade-off between reliability and resources. If it is important that the SNMP manager receive every notification, use inform requests. If traffic on the network or memory in the switch is a concern and notification is not required, use traps.

3.2 Basic Config

100		B Home Reboot (a) View User Information (a) Show Cli Running (a) Basic Config (a)	welcome guest exit
	\$G3226FP	SHIP Status	
	> System	STORP Agent Status: O Enable Cisable	
	> SNMP	Sand Advert Strate Occurse	
	 Basic Config 	ОК	
	 Community 		
	 Management Station 	IPv6 Status	
	 V3Engine ID 		
	 V3Group Config 	19v6 Status: O Enable 🛞 Disable	
	 V3User Config 	Port: (1-65535)	
	 V3View Config 		
	Port Management	OK	
	Redundancy		
	> Security	SNHP Basic Configuration	
	> QoS		
	> Multicast	System Name: *	
	> Network Analysis	System Location:	
	> Network Equipment	System Contact:	

Figure 3-2-1

In this step you need to enable SNMP function first, and then you can set the System Name, Location and Contact

3.3 Community

	B Home View User Information 🗟 Show Cli Ranning 🛞 Basic Config 🛞 Community 😥
SG3226FP	SNHP Community
> System	Community:
> SNMP	control of the second sec
· Basic Config	Manage Ip: (puch as 10.8.8.1 or 10.8.8.8/8 or XXX:XXI)
+ Community	OID: *(object id such as 1.3.6.1.2.1)
 Management Station 	Venies: V
 V3Engine ID 	Pagedeen: Read Only Read/Write
 V3Group Config 	Pagedden: Head Only O Readjointe
 V3User Config 	OK
 V3View Config 	
Port Management	View SNRP Community
Redundancy	and plan demonstry
> Security	IPvenion SnmpVersion Community Access managment[p OID Delete
> QoS	A total of 0 Per page show 5 V First Prev Next Last
> Multicast	
Network Analysis	
> Network Equipmer	a

Figure 3-3-1

On this page, you can configure SNMP Group to the network access by providing the users in various groups with different management rights (Read View and Write View).

Community: Name defined by administrator.

Manage IP: The IP who can manage the switch through the community.

SMMP View: The OID accessed by the community.

Popedom: Read Only or Read/Write.

Notes:

Every Group should contain a Read View .The default Read View is View fault.

3.4 Management Station

	8 Home Show Cli Running Basic Config Community Kanagement Station R	welco
SG3226FP	SNHP Manage Station	
> System	Manage Station IP Address:	
SNMP	manage scatters in Address:	
Basic Config	Version: 🔍 -	
Community	Trap Community:	
Management Station		
 V3Engine ID 	OK	
 V3Group Config 		
 V3User Config 	View SNMP Manage Station	
V3View Config		
Port Management	Version Manage Station IP Address Trap Community Delete	
Redundancy	A total of 0 Per page show 5 🌱 First Prev Next Last	
² Security		
> QoS		
Multicast		
Network Analysis		
> Network Equipment		

Figure 3-4-1

SNMP Management Station is the workstation for running the SNMP client program, trap agent send urgent log to the management station. You need set IP and community.

3.5 V3Engine ID

SG3226FP	Basic Cooling Community Colling Hanagement Station (s) Writeging RD SNMP Engine ID	welcome guest ! ex
> System	Engine 3D 8040178380274380150000053	
> SNMP		
+ Basic Config		
+ Community		
+ Hanagement Station		
+ V3Engine ID		
+ V3Group Config		
+ V3User Config		
+ V3View Config		
^{>} Port Management		
Redundancy		
> Security		
> QoS		
> Multicast		
³ Network Analysis		
> Network Equipment		

Figure 3-5-1

On this page, the default of the V3Engine ID is not configurable.

3.6 V3Group Config

	B Home Community	Management Station 🖃	V3Engine ID 🗵 🚺 V3Grou	p Canlig 🖸		welcome guest !
SG3226FP	SNMP V3 Group Configur	sation				
> System		roup Name				
> SNMP		aroup Name				
· Basic Config	Read	View Name	-			
 Community 	Write	View Name				
 Management Station 		curity Level	v			
 V3Engine ID 		Curity Level	•			
 V3Group Config 		OK				
+ V3User Config						
 V3View Config 	SNMP V3 Group Table					
Port Management						
Redundancy	Group Name	Security Level	Read View Name	Write View Name	Delete	
Security	A total of 0 Per po	ige show 5 💙 First Prev	Next Last 🌱			
> QoS						
> Multicast						
Network Analysis						
> Network Equipment						

Figure 3-6-1

Group Name: The Group Name, security Model and Security Level compose the identifier of the SNMP Group.

Read View Name: The management access is restricted to read-only, and changes cannot be made to the assigned SNMP View. Configure it as the Figure 5-1-5.

Write View Name: The management access is writing only and changes can be made to the assigned SNMP View .The View defined both as the Read View and the write view can be read and modified. Configure it as the Figure 5-1-5.

Security Level:

NoAuthNoPriv: Not Certified and Not Encrypted.

AuthNoPriv: Certified and Not Encrypted.

AuthPriv: Certified and Encrypted.

3.7 V3User Config

		-11 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12
SG3226FP	🛢 Home 🛛 Henseement Station 🛞 V3Engine ID 🗟 🛛 V3Group Config 🕿 🛛 V3Bluer Config 🕿	welcome_guest ! e
563226FP	SNIHPV3 User Configuration	
> System	User Name *	
> SNMP	Use wate	
+ Basic Config	Group Name *	
+ Community	Validate/Encrypt Cnable ODisable	
+ Management Station	Auth-Protocol V	
+ V3Engine ID		
+ V3Group Config	Auth-Protocol Password * (Length cann't be less than 8)	
+ V3User Config	Priv-Protocol V	
+ V3View Config		
> Port Management	OK	
> Redundancy		
> Security	SNMP User Table	
> QoS	User Name Group Name Auth-Protocol Priv-Protocol Delete	
> Multicast	A total of 0 Per page show 5 V First Prov Next Last V	
> Network Analysis	A total or o Per page show o Prot Prev Next Last	
> Network Equipment		

Figure 3-7-1

On this page, it shows the V3User configuration.

User Name: The user name needs to be added.

User Group: The group that the user belongs to.

Validated and Encrypted: Whether needs to open the Validated and Encrypted.

Auth- Protocol: After opening the Validate/Encrypt, it should select MD5 or SHA and configure password unless than 8 digit.

Priv-Protocol: whether needs to open the function of Encrypted .It should select DES and configure password unless than 8 digit.

3.8 V3View Config

SG3226FP	Home VErgise Dig VSkrup Carling VSkrup Carling VSkrup Carling S SNHP View Carling II SNHP View Carling II	welcome guest I ea
> System	View Name =	
> SNMP		
+ Basic Config	SubTree 000 *	
+ Community	View Type Include O Exclude	
 Management Station 		
+ V3Engine ID	OK	
 V3Group Config 		
 V3User Config 	SNMP View Tale	
 V3View Config 	View Name SubTree OID View Type Delete	
Port Management		
Redundancy	A total of 0 Per page show S V First Prev Next Last	
> Security		
> QoS		
> Multicast		
> Network Analysis		
> Network Equipment		

Figure 3-8-1

Configure the SNMP V3view as Figure 5-1-7.

View Name: The new View name.

SubTree OID: It means the View needs OID.

View type: Including means the SubTree displaying View. Exclude means the left of the SubTree displaying View.

Chapter 4: Port Management

4.1 Port Configuration

		10 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C							÷÷
	🛢 Home	V3Group Config 😥	V3User Config	1 X XVI	ew Config 😠	Port Configur	ation 🛛		
SG3226FP	Port Con	figuration							
> System		Port Type:							
> SNMP									
> Port Management		Port List: "(for example 1-3,5)							
+ Port Configuration		Management State	15	_	×				
· Port Statistics		Speed/Duples:							
 Band Restricting 		Flow Contr			V				
 Port Description 		Piew Colle	9C		•				
+ POE				OK					
 Storm Control 									
+ Port Isolation	View Por	1 Shahara							
+ DOM									
Redundancy			Link Status		Speed		Duplex	Flo	eer Control
> Security	Port	Port Nanagement Status		Config	Actual	Config	Actual	Config	Actual
> QoS	GI	Enable	Down	Auto	N/A	Auto	N/A	Disable	N/A
> Multicast	0/01 Gi	Enable	Down	Auto	N/A	Auto	N/A	Disable	N/A
Network Analysis	0/02			MUSO					
) Mahurak Faulamant	GI A 16.2	Enable	Down	Auto	N/A	Auto	N/A	Disable	N/A

Figure 4-1-1

On this page ,you can configure the basic parameter for the ports .When the port is disabled ,the packers on the port will be discard .Shut down the port which is vacant for a long time can reduce the power consumption effectively .And you can enable the port when it is in need. The parameters will affect the working mode of the ports, please set the parameters appropriate.

Management Status: Allows you to Enable/Disable the port .When Enable is set, the port can forward the packets normally.

Speed and Duplex: Select the speed and Duplex mode for the port .The device connected to the switch should be in the same Speed and Duplex mode with the switch .When "Auto" is set, the Speed and Duplex mode will be determined by auto-negotiation. But the SFP port, this Switch does not support auto-negotiation. Flow Control: Allows you to Enable /Disable the Flow Control feature .When Flow Control is enabled, the switch can synchronize the speed with its peer to avoid the congestion.

4.2 Port Statistics

	8 Home	V3User Con	fig 🗵	V3View Conf	ig 🗟 🛛 Pert	Configuration 🛞 Port Statistics 🗵				welcome guest
SG3226FP	Port Statistics									
> System				Total						
> SNMP		Management	Link	Bytes Of	Received		Send	Collision		
> Port Management	Port	Status	Status	Received	Packages	Total Bytes Of Send Packages	Packages		Detail	
· Port Configuration				Packages						
· Port Statistics	Gi 0/01	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
 Band Restricting 	Gi 0/82	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
 Port Description 	Gi 0/83	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
+ POE	Gi 0/04	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
 Storm Control 	Gi 0/85	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
 Port Isolation 	Gi 0/06	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
+ DDM	Gi 0/87	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
> Redundancy	Gi 0/08	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
> Security	Gi 0/09	Enable	Down	0	0	0	0	0	View	
	Gi 0/10	Enable	Up	301.65KB	2,526 Inst Prev	1.76MB	2,413	0	View	

Figure 4-2-1

Port Statics: It includes Link Status, total bytes of received packages, received packages, total bytes of send packages, send packages, collision packages, and discarded packages.

4.3 Band Resrtricting

`					
SG3226FP	B Home V3V	ew Config 😰 Port Configuration 🕱 🛛 A	fort Statistics 😰 🛛 Band Restricting 😰		welcome guest ! exi
303220FF	Port Band Restric				
> System		Port Type:	×		
> SNMP			V		
> Port Management		Port List:	•		
+ Port Configuration		Ingress Bandwidth:	(64~1000000kb/s)		
 Port Statistics 		Egress Bandwidth:	(64~1000000kh/s)		
+ Band Restricting					
 Port Description 		Add			
+ POE					
+ Storm Control	View Port Limit To	affic			
+ Port Isolation					
+ DDM	Port	Ingress Bandwidth(Kb/s)	Egress Bandwidth(Kb/s)	Delete	
> Redundancy	A total of 0	Per page show 5 💙 First Prev	Next Last		
> Security					
> QoS					
> Multicast					
> Network Analysis					

Figure 4-3-1

Bandwidth function, allowing you to control the traffic rate and

broadcast flow on each port, can be implemented on the Rate Limit and Storm Control pages.

4.4 Port Description

(HA ANT MAR OT VIII VIIII VIIII VIIIII VIIIII			
SG3226FP	B Home Part Configural	fon 🖹 Port Statistics 🗐 Band Restricting 😰 Por	t Description 🗃	welcome guest ! exit
503220FP	Port Description			
> System		ort Type:		
> SNMP				
Port Management		Port List:		
+ Port Configuration	De	scription: * (a-2,A-Z,0-9)	Length cann't be greater than 31)	
+ Port Statistics				
+ Band Restricting		OK		
+ Port Description				
+ POE	View Port Description Table	•		
 Storm Control 	Part	Port Description	Delete	
 Port Isolation 			Contra	
+ DDM	A total of 0 Per page	show 5 💙 First Prev Next Last 🍟		
Redundancy		Delete All		
> Security				
> QoS				
> Multicast				
> Network Analysis				
) Natural Coulomon				

Figure 4-4-1

Port Description can make a sign to the port which is convenient for you to find any useful information quickly.

4.5 Storm Control

4.5.1 Understanding Storm Control

Storm control prevents traffic on a LAN from being disrupted by a broadcast, multicast, or unicast storm on a port. A LAN storm occurs when packets flood the LAN, creating excessive traffic and degrading network performance. Errors in the protocol-stack implementation, mistakes in network configuration, or users issuing a denial-of-service attack can cause a storm.

Storm control is configured for the switch as a whole but operates on a per-port basis. By default, storm control is disabled.

Storm control uses rising and falling thresholds to block and then restore the forwarding of broadcast, unicast, or multicast packets. You can also set the switch to shut down the port when the rising threshold is reached.

The thresholds can either be expressed as a percentage of the total available bandwidth that can be used by the broadcast, multicast, or

unicast traffic, or as the rate at which the interface receives multicast, broadcast, or unicast traffic.

When a switch uses the bandwidth-based method, the rising threshold is the percentage of total available bandwidth associated with multicast, broadcast, or unicast traffic before forwarding is blocked. The falling threshold is the percentage of total available bandwidth below which the switch resumes normal forwarding. In general, the higher the level, the less effective the protection against broadcast storms. Uses traffic rates as the threshold values, the rising and falling thresholds are in packets per second. The rising threshold is the rate at which multicast, broadcast, and unicast traffic is received before forwarding is blocked.

The falling threshold is the rate below which the switch resumes normal forwarding. In general, the higher the rate, the less effective the protection against broadcast storms.

)					- <u>1</u>
SG3226FP	B Home Po	rt Statistics 😠 🛛 Band Restricting 📰 🛛 Port De	scription 😠 Storm Control 🛛		welcome guest ! ex
> System		Port Type:	V		
> Port Management		Port List:	-		
+ Port Configuration		Starm: Broadcast Hult	icast 🗌 Unicast		
 Port Statistics 		Speed Control:	* (64-100000 kbps,0 is cancel)		
+ Band Restricting		speed control.	(art tooloot kuyaja la Canca)		
 Port Description 		OK			
+ POE					
+ Storm Control	View Storm Con	trol Table			
+ Port Isolation					
+ DOM	Port	Broadcast Storm	Multicast Sterm	Unicast Storm	
Redundancy	Gi 0/01	N/A	N/A	N/A	
> Security	Gi 0/02	N/A	N/A	N/A	
> QoS	G	N/A	NA	N/A	
> Multicast	a/03				
> Network Analysis	0/04	N/A	N,íA	N/A	
) Notwork Covineman	Gi	N/A	N/A	N/A	

Figure 4-5-1

Set and view limit of broadcast, multicast, unknown unicast flood level on port.

4.6 POE

Introduction to PoE

This function is only in PE series switches.

Power over Ethernet (PoE) means that power sourcing equipment (PSE) supplies power to powered devices (PD) such as IP Phone, wireless LAN access point, and web camera from Ethernet interfaces through twisted pair cables.

Advantages

- Reliable: Power is supplied in a centralized way so that it is very convenient to provide a backup power supply.
- Easy to connect: A network terminal requires only one Ethernet cable, but no external power supply.
- Standard: In compliance with IEEE 802.3af, a globally uniform power interface is adopted.
- Promising: It can be applied to IP telephones, wireless LAN access points, portable chargers, card readers, web cameras, and data collectors.

POE Status	
Vmain:	54.47V
Pconsume:	1.70W
POE Configuration	
Port Type:	Fa 0/
Port List:	
POE Management:	C Enable C Disable
	ОК



On POE page, you can check consume, and set if PoE is enabled on each port.

Input port number and set enable or disable, then press OK.

Port	POE Management	Operational Status	Classification	Power Supply PRI	Consumption
a 0/01	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/02	Auto	On	Class3	Critical	1.70W
a 0/03	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/04	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/05	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/06	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/07	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/08	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/09	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W
a 0/10	Auto	N/A	ClassHalt	Critical	0.00W

View POE Configuration Status



On the below part of POE page, you can check management and consume of each port.

Chapter 5: Redundancy

Understanding Ether Channels

Ether Channel provides fault-tolerant high-speed links between switches, routers, and servers. You can use it to increase the bandwidth among the wiring closets and the data center, and you can deploy it anywhere in the network where bottlenecks are likely to occur. Ether Channel provides automatic recovery for the loss of a link by redistributing the load across the remaining links. If a link fails, Ether Channel redirects traffic from the failed link to the remaining links in the channel without intervention.

Each Ether Channel can consist of up to eight compatibly configured Ethernet interfaces. All interfaces in each Ether Channel must be the same speed, and all must be configured as Layer 2 interfaces.

Introduction to Link Aggregation

Link aggregation can aggregate multiple Ethernet ports together to form a logical aggregation group. To upper layer entities, all the physical links in an aggregation group are a single logical link. Link aggregation is designed to increase bandwidth by implementing outgoing/incoming load sharing among the member ports in an aggregation group. Link aggregation group also allows for port redundancy, which improves connection reliability.

Introduction to LACP

Link aggregation control protocol (LACP) is designed to implement dynamic link aggregation and disaggregation. This protocol is based on IEEE802.3ad and uses link aggregation control protocol data units (LACPDUs) to interact with its peer.

With LACP enabled on a port, LACP notifies the following information of the port to its peer by sending LACPDUs: priority and MAC address of this system, priority, number and operation key of the port. Upon receiving the information, the peer compares the information with the information of other ports on the peer device to determine the ports that can be aggregated. In this way, the two parties can reach an agreement in adding/removing the port to/from a dynamic aggregation group.

Operation key is generated by the system. It is determined by port settings such as port speed, duplex mode, and basic configurations.

- Selected ports in a manual aggregation group or a static aggregation group have the same operation key.
- Member ports in a dynamic aggregation group have the same operation key.

Exchanging LACP Packets

Both the **active** and **passive** LACP modes allow interfaces to negotiate with partner interfaces to determine if they can form an EtherChannel based on criteria such as interface speed and, for Layer 2 EtherChannel, trunking state, and VLAN numbers.

Interfaces can form an EtherChannel when they are in different LACP modes as long as the modes are compatible. For example:

- An interface in the **active** mode can form an EtherChannel with another interface that is in the **active** mode.
- An interface in the **active** mode can form an EtherChannel with another interface in the **passive** mode.

An interface in the **passive** mode cannot form an EtherChannel with another interface that is also in the **passive** mode because neither interface starts LACP negotiation.

An interface in the **on** mode that is added to a port channel is forced

to have the same characteristics as the already existing **on** mode interfaces in the channel.

Understanding Load Balancing and Forwarding Methods

EtherChannel balances the traffic load across the links in a channel by randomly associating a newly learned MAC address with one of the links in the channel.

With source-MAC address forwarding, packets forwarded to an EtherChannel are distributed across the ports in the channel based on the source-MAC address of the incoming packet. Therefore, to provide load balancing, packets from different hosts use different ports in the channel, but packets from the same host use the same port in the channel. The MAC address learned by the switch does not change).

With destination-MAC address forwarding, packets forwarded to an Ether Channel are distributed across the ports in the channel based on the destination host MAC address of the incoming packet.

Therefore, packets to the same destination are forwarded over the same port, and packets to a different destination might be sent on a different port in the channel.

Multiple workstations are connected to a switch, and an Ether Channel connects the switch to the router.

Source-based load balancing is used on the switch end of the Ether Channel to ensure that the switch efficiently uses the bandwidth of the router by distributing traffic from the workstation across the physical links. Since the router is a single MAC address device, it uses destination-based load balancing to efficiently spread the traffic to the workstations across the physical links in the Ether Channel.

5.1 Link Aggregation

	Here: Part Description					welcome guest I e
SG3226FP	Link Trunk Configuration	ou (k) _ scorm control (i	POE Link Aggrega			weiconie guese i e
> System	Tn	nk Group: Po 1	V			
> SNMP						
Port Management	Port GI 0/01	List		Trunk Group Port	3	
Redundancy	Gi 0/01 Gi 0/02 Gi 0/03	^				
 Link Appregation 	GI 0/04		Add			
+ LACP	Gi 0/05 Gi 0/06 Gi 0/07					
 Smart/Monitor Link 	Gi 0/08					
+ RRPP	Gi 0/09 Gi 0/10		Delete			
▶ MSTP	Gi 0/11 Gi 0/12	~				
> Security	Gi 0/13			1		
> QoS						
> Multicast						
> Network Analysis						
Network Equipment						
> Advanced Setup						

Figure 5-1-1

Select an aggregation group number, and then add port in the left form to the right form, that makes port join into aggregation group. The switch has max 8 groups, and one aggregation group can support max 8 member ports.

Attention:

100M port and 1000M port cannot join into a same aggregation group.

5.2 LACP

	· \		- <u>1</u>
		Home Starm Control R POE Link Aggregation R LACP E	welcome guest ! exit
	SG3226FP	System Configuration	
>	System	IACP Status: O Enable Disable	
>	SNMP		
>	Port Management	System Priority: 1 * (1-65535)	
>	Redundancy	System Mac: 08:10:78:5D:A5:01	
	Link Appregation		
	LACP	OK	
	Smart/Monitor Link		
	RRPP	LACP Configuration	
	NSTP	Port Type:	
	Security	PortList:	
>	Q08		
>	Multicast	Group Key: Po 1	
>	Network Analysis	Put Priority: (1-65535)	
>	Network Equipment		
>	Advanced Setup	OK	

Figure 5-2-1

System Configuration:

LACP Status: you can disable or enable LACP function. System Priority: set priority of switch System Mac: show system default MAC, cannot modify.

LACP Configuration:

Port: input the port number which you want to set Group key: select a group number which you want the port joins into Mode: set the port LACP mode Port priority: set the port LACP priority View Port Information

Group	Port	Port Priority	Activity	Timeout	Aggregation	Synchronization	Collecting	Distributing	Defaulted	Expired	Delete
1	Fa 0/01	1	Active	Long	False	True	False	False	True	True	
1	Fa 0/02	1	Active	Long	False	True	False	False	True	True	
A	total of	2 Per pag	e show	10 T Fi	rst Prev	Next Last 1	-				

View Partner's information

Actor Port	Group	Port Priority	Activity	Timeout	Aggregation	Synchronization	Collecting	Distributing	Defaulted	Expired
Fa 0/01	0	0	Passive	Short	False	False	False	False	False	False
Fa 0/02	0	0	Passive	Short	False	False	False	False	False	False
A total	of 2	Per page sho	w 10 💌	First P	rev Next I	ast 1 💌				

View Standby Port

Group	Standby Port
A total of 0 Per page show 5 💌	First Prev Next Last

	lected	

Group	Unselected Port
1	Fa 0/01 Fa 0/02
A total of 1 Per page show 10	First Prev Next Last 1 -

Figure 5-2-2

View information of port, partner, stand by port and unselected port.

5.3 Smart /Monitor Link

Basic Concepts in Smart Link

Smart Link Group

A smart link group consists of two member ports: the master port and the slave port. A port can belong to different smart link groups at the same time. Normally, at a time, only one port (master or slave) is active for forwarding, while the other port is blocked, that is, in the standby state.

Master Port

The master port of a smart link group is a port role specified using commands. It can be an Ethernet port (electrical or optical), or an aggregate interface.

Slave Port

The slave port of a smart link group is another port role specified using commands. It can be an Ethernet port (electrical or optical), or an aggregate interface. The link on which the slave port resides is called the backup link.

Basic Concepts in Monitor Link

Monitor Link Group

A monitor link group is a set of uplink and downlink ports. Downlink ports adapt to the state changes of uplink ports.

Uplink Port

An uplink port is a monitored port in a monitor link group. It is a port role specified using commands. It can be an Ethernet port (electrical or optical), or an aggregate interface.

Downlink Port

A downlink port is a monitoring port in a monitor link group. It is another port role specified using commands. It can be an Ethernet port (electrical or optical), or an aggregate interface.

		-
SG3226FP	tanne POE Link Appropriation LACP Semant/Munitor Link Semant/Munitor Link Semant/Munitor Link	welcome guest I ex
> System > SNMP	Send Plush: [Dnable [V]	
³ Port Management ³ Redundancy	OK	
+ Link Aggregation + LACP	Smart Link Plaster Port Configuration	
Smart/Monitor Link RRPP MSTP	Hanter Port Status: Status V Port Type:	
> Security > QoS	Master Port:	
 Vos Multicast Network Analysis 		
 Network Analysis Network Equipment Advanced Setup 	Smart Link Slave Port Configuration Slave Port Status: Deable	
- Advanced Secup	Port Typer	

Figure 5-3-1

Send flush: you can disable or enable send flush status. Master port status: set a port is master port or not. Port: input port type and number which you want to set. Slave port status: set a port is slave port or not.

Monitor Up Link Configuration	
Up link Port Status:	Disable
Port Type:	Fa 0/
Up link Port:	
	OK
Monitor Down Link Configuration	
Down Link Port Status:	Disable
Down Link Port Status: Port Type:	

Port: input port type and number which you want to set.



Up link port status: set a port is up link port or not. Port: input port type and number which you want to set. Down link status: set a port is down link port or not. Port: input port type and number which you want to set.

View Smart Link		
Member	Role	Status
A total of 0 Per page show 5 💌 First P	rev Next Last 📃	
View Monitor Link		
Member	Role	Status
A total of 0 Per page show 5 💌 First P	rev Next Last	

Figure 5-3-3

View configuration of smart link and monitor link.
5.4 RRPP Introduce RRPP

RRPP Domain

An RRPP domain identified by an integral ID defines a topology range calculated and controlled by the RRPP protocol. It consists of some interconnected devices with the same domain ID, control VLANs, and protected VLANs. A device can belong to multiple RRPP domains. An RRPP domain consists of the following elements:

- RRPP rings
- RRPP control VLANs
- RRPP protected VLANs
- Master nodes
- Transit nodes
- Edge nodes
- Assistant-edge nodes

RRPP Ring

Each RRPP ring corresponds to a ring-shaped Ethernet topology and is identified by an integral ID. As described in the last section, an RRPP domain consists of a single RRPP ring or multiple connected RRPP rings. The topology calculation is actually based on RRPP rings. Typically, ring topologies fall into these three types: single ring, tangent rings, and intersecting rings. For each topology type, the RRPP domain configuration is different:

All devices on the $\bar{\rm single}$ ring are configured to be in the same RRPP domain.

All devices on intersecting rings are also configured to be in the same RRPP domain.

For two tangent rings, the devices on each ring are configured to be in the same RRPP domain. That is, two tangent rings need two different RRPP domains, one for each ring.

In an RRPP domain with intersecting rings, to achieve independent topology calculation on each ring without affecting other rings and prevent loops, you need to configure one ring as the primary ring and the others as subrings. The primary ring as a whole serves as a logical node on the subrings, and protocol packets from the subrings are transparently transmitted through the primary ring. In this way, topology calculation is performed on the intersecting rings as a whole.

Protocol packets of the primary ring are confined within the primary ring. The level of the primary ring is 0 and that of subrings is 1.

RRPP Control VLAN

As described earlier, RRPP separates data traffic from RRPPDUs (RRPP packets) by transmitting RRPPDUs in dedicated VLANs called control VLANs. An RRPP domain is configured with one primary control VLAN and one secondary control VLAN. After you specify a VLAN as the primary control VLAN, the VLAN whose ID is one plus the primary control VLAN ID is configured as the secondary control VLAN automatically. The primary control VLAN transmits the RRPPDUs of the primary ring and the EDGE-HELLO messages of the subrings except the EDGE-HELLO messages.

All the ports connecting devices to RRPP rings are assigned to control VLANs, and only such ports can be assigned to control VLANs.

RRPP Protected VLAN

A protected VLAN is a VLAN that transmits data packets. It can contain both RRPP ports and non-RRPP ports. A protected VLAN's forwarding status is controlled by its RRPP domain. Different RRPP domains on the same RRPP ring are configured with different protected VLANs, and each RRPP domain controls the forwarding status of ports in it independently.

Master Node

Each device on an RRPP ring is called an RRPP node. On an RRPP ring, you must configure only one as the master node. The master node initiates ring status detection with the polling mechanism and makes operation decisions upon ring topology changes.

A master node can be in one of the following states:

Complete state

The master node is in the complete state if it can receive at its secondary port the Hello packets sent out its primary port. In this case, the master node blocks the secondary port to prevent traffic loops.

Failed state

When a link in the ring fails, the master node is in the failed state. To avoid traffic interruption in the ring, the master node unblocks the secondary port to forward data traffic.

Note:

The state of the master node represents the state of the whole RRPP ring. That is, when the master node is in the complete (failed) state, the RRPP ring is also in the complete (failed) state.

Transit Node

All the nodes except the master node on a ring are transit nodes. A transit node can be in one of the following states depending on the states of its primary and secondary ports:

• Link-up state

When both the primary port and secondary port are up, the transit node is in the link-up state.

• Link-down state

When either the primary port or the secondary port is down, the transit node is in the link-down state.

Pre-forwarding state

When either the primary port or the secondary port is blocked, the transit node is in the pre-forwarding state.

Edge Node and Assistant-Edge Node

In an RRPP domain, of the two nodes at which the primary ring and a subring intersect, one is the edge node and the other is the assistant-edge node. You can configure either of them as the edge or the assistant-edge but must ensure that the roles of the two nodes are different.

Edge nodes and assistant-edge nodes are special transit nodes. An edge or edge-assistant node can be in one of the following three states depending on the state of its edge port:

Link-up state

When the edge port is up, the node is in the link-up state.

Link-down state

When the edge port is down, the node is in the link-down state.

Pre-forwarding state

When the edge port is blocked, the node is in the pre-forwarding state.

The state transition of an edge or edge-assistant node is the same as that of a transit node but it is triggered by the link state change of the edge port only.

Primary Port and Secondary Port

Of the ports that connect a node to an RRPP ring, one is the primary port and the other is the secondary port. You can configure them as needed.

The primary and secondary ports of master nodes are different in functions. A master node sends HELLO messages out its primary port. If it can receive these HELLO messages on its secondary port, the master node considers the RRPP ring as complete and thus blocks the secondary port to avoid loops. If the master node fails to receive these HELLO messages within the specified period, it considers the ring as having failed and unblocks the secondary port to ensure service continuity.

The primary and secondary ports of a transit node are the same in functions.

In an RRPP domain, the primary ring is a logical node of each subring and it transmits subring RRPPDUs (except the EDGE-HELLO messages) transparently as data traffic. Therefore, no data packet or subring RRPPDU (except the EDGE-HELLO messages) can pass through a blocked port on the primary ring.

Common Port and Edge Port

On an edge or assistant-edge node, the port connecting to the subring is called the edge port while the two ports connecting to the primary ring are called common ports. The link between the common port on the edge node and that on the assistant-edge node is called the common link.

As a primary ring is considered as a logical node on its siblings, the common link is considered as an internal link of the "primary ring" node. Thus, the common link state changes are reported only to the master node of the primary ring.

		- <u>1</u> -1 2
100	8 Home Link Aggregation 🛞 LACP 🛞 Smart/Honitor Link 🛞 1999 🛙	welcome guest ! exit
SG3226FP	RRPP Configuration	
> System	Domain ID: * (1-254)	
> SNMP		
> Port Management	Ring ID: = (1-66)	
> Redundancy	Node Role: Muster O Transit	
+ Link Aggregation	Primary port: Gi 0/01	
+ LACP	Secondary port: Gi 0/01	
+ Smart/Monitor Link		
+ RRPP	Centrol VID: * (2-8994)	
MSTP	OK	
> Security	UN.	
) QoS		
> Multicast	RRPP Status Configuration	
> Network Analysis	Ropp Status: O Enable Disable	
> Network Equipment		
> Advanced Setup	ОК	

Figure 5-4-1

RRPP Configuration

Domain ID: input a Domain ID here. Ring ID: input a Ring ID here Node Role: set Node role is master or transit Primary port: select and set primary port number Secondary port: select and set secondary port number Control VID: input control VLAN id. RRPP State Configuration

RRPP State: config rrpp function is enable or disable globle.

RRPP Timer Configuration		
Hello-timer:	1	* (1-100)
Fail-timer:	3	= (1-100 and fail time $>=$ 3"hello time!)
	ОК	
Delete Ring		
Ring ID:		* (1-66)
	ОК	

Figure 5-4-2

RRPP Timer Configuration

Hello timer: set interval time the switch sends rrpp hello, default is 1 second.

Fail-timer: set a time period, which can help slave port to know whether receive a hello or not.

Delete Ring

Ring ID: input ring id then press OK, this can delete the ring set before.

liew RRPP I	nfo							
Ring status	Domain id	Ring id	Control VID	Node role	Primary port	Primary state	Secondary port	Secondary state
Active	1	1	2	MASTER	Fa 0/01	Link Down	Fa 0/02	Link Down
A total o	if 1 Perp	age show	v 10 💌 First	Prev Ne	ext Last 1	-		



View rrpp infomation

5.5 STP/RSTP/MSTP

5.5.1 STP Overview Functions of STP

Spanning tree protocol (STP) is a protocol conforming to IEEE 802.1d. It aims to eliminate loops on data link layer in a local area network (LAN). Devices running this protocol detect loops in the network by exchanging packets with one another and eliminate the loops detected by blocking specific ports until the network is pruned into one with tree topology. As a network with tree topology is loop-free, it prevents packets in it from being duplicated and forwarded endlessly and prevents device performance degradation. Currently, in addition to the protocol conforming to IEEE 802.1d, STP also refers to the protocols based on IEEE 802.1d, such as RSTP, and MSTP.

Protocol packets of STP

STP uses bridge protocol data units (BPDUs), also known as configuration messages, as its protocol packets.

STP identifies the network topology by transmitting BPDUs between STP compliant network devices.

BPDUs contain sufficient information for the network devices to

complete the spanning tree calculation.

In STP, BPDUs come in two types:

- Configuration BPDUs, used to calculate spanning trees and maintain the spanning tree topology.
- Topology change notification (TCN) BPDUs, used to notify concerned devices of network topology changes, if any.

Basic concepts in STP

1) Root bridge

A tree network must have a root; hence the concept of "root bridge" has been introduced in STP. There is one and only one root bridge in the entire network, and the root bridge can change alone with changes of the network topology. Therefore, the root bridge is not fixed.

Upon network convergence, the root bridge generates and sends out configuration BPDUs periodically.

Other devices just forward the configuration BPDUs received. This mechanism ensures the topological stability.

2) Root port

On a non-root bridge device, the root port is the port with the lowest path cost to the root bridge. The root port is used for communicating with the root bridge. A non-root-bridge device has one and only one root port. The root bridge has no root port.

3) Designated bridge and designated port

Designated bridge: A designated bridge is a device that is directly connected to a switch and is responsible for forwarding BPDUs to this switch. Designated port: The port through which the designated bridge forwards BPDUs to this device

4) Path cost

Path cost is a value used for measuring link capacity. By comparing the path costs of different links, STP selects the most robust links and blocks the other links to prune the network into a tree.

How STP works

STP identifies the network topology by transmitting configuration

BPDUs between network devices.

Configuration BPDUs contain sufficient information for network devices to complete the spanning tree calculation. Important fields in a configuration BPDU include:

- Root bridge ID, consisting of root bridge priority and MAC address.
- Root path cost, the cost of the shortest path to the root bridge.
- Designated bridge ID, designated bridge priority plus MAC address.
- Designated port ID, designated port priority plus port name.
- Message age: lifetime for the configuration BPDUs to be propagated within the network.
- Max age, lifetime for the configuration BPDUs to be kept in a switch.
- Hello time, configuration BPDU interval.
- Forward delay, forward delay of the port.

5) Detailed calculation process of the STP algorithm Initial state

- Upon initialization of a device, each device generates a BPDU with itself as the root bridge, in which the root path cost is 0, designated bridge ID is the device ID, and the designated port is the local port.
- Selection of the optimum configuration BPDU
- Each device sends out its configuration BPDU and receives configuration BPDUs from other devices.
- Selection of the root bridge
- At network initialization, each STP-compliant device on the network assumes itself to be the root bridge, with the root bridge ID being its own bridge ID. By exchanging configuration BPDUs, the devices compare one another's root bridge ID. The device with the smallest root bridge ID is elected as the root bridge.
- Selection of the root port and designated ports
- A non-root-bridge device takes the port on which the optimum configuration BPDU was received as the root port.
- Once the root bridge, the root port on each non-root bridge and designated ports have been successfully elected, the entire treeshaped topology has been constructed.

6) The BPDU forwarding mechanism in STP

- Upon network initiation, every switch regards itself as the root bridge, generates configuration
- BPDUs with itself as the root, and sends the configuration BPDUs at

a regular interval of hello time.

- If it is the root port that received the configuration BPDU and the received configuration BPDU is superior to the configuration BPDU of the port, the device will increase message age carried in the configuration BPDU by a certain rule and start a timer to time the configuration BPDU while it sends out this configuration BPDU through the designated port.
- If the configuration BPDU received on the designated port has a lower priority than the configuration BPDU of the local port, the port will immediately sends out its better configuration BPDU in response.
- If a path becomes faulty, the root port on this path will no longer receive new configuration BPDUs and the old configuration BPDUs will be discarded due to timeout. In this case, the device generates configuration BPDUs with itself as the root bridge and sends configuration BPDUs and TCN BPDUs. This triggers a new spanning tree calculation so that a new path is established to restore the network connectivity.

However, the newly calculated configuration BPDU will not be propagated throughout the network immediately, so the old root ports and designated ports that have not detected the topology change continue forwarding data through the old path. If the new root port and designated port begin to forward data as soon as they are elected, a temporary loop may occur.

7) STP timers

The following three time parameters are important for STP calculation:

• Forward delay, the period a device waits before state transition.

A link failure triggers a new round of spanning tree calculation and results in changes of the spanning tree. However, as new configuration BPDUs cannot be propagated throughout the network immediately, if the new root port and designated port begin to forward data as soon as they are elected, loops may temporarily occur.

For this reason, the protocol uses a state transition mechanism. Namely, a newly elected root port and the designated ports must go through a period, which is twice the forward delay time, before they transit to the forwarding state. The period allows the new configuration BPDUs to be propagated throughout the entire network.

- Hello time, the interval for sending hello packets. Hello packets are used to check link state. A switch sends hello packets to its neighboring devices at a regular interval (the hello time) to check whether the links are faulty.
- Max time, lifetime of the configuration BPDUs stored in a switch. A configuration BPDU that has "expired" is discarded by the switch.

	Blace LMCF (2) Teal (Media LMA) 107		evices and the
\$G3226FP	Spanning Tree Configuration		
> System	Spanning Tree Status: Otraile	@ Deadle	
² Port Management	0		
> Refundancy			
+ Link Apprepation	Bridge Priority Configuration		
+ LACP			
+ Smirt/Monitar Link	POTI ID:		
- 8800 > METP	Bridge Priority:		
 STP Configure 	0		
· HST Configure			
RETP Fort	Root Configuration		
> Security	POTI ID-		
, 6+2			
² Multicast	Task	V	
> Network Analysis	0		
SG3226FP	Spanning Tree Configuration		
> SNMP	Spanning Tree Status:	Enuble O Disable	
> Port Manageme	nt Protocal Version:	HSTP *	
> Redundancy	Helo Time:	2 *	
+ Link Apprepation			
+ LACP	Max Age:	AV	
+ Smart/Monitor Link	Forward Delay:	15 *	
+ 88/9	Max Hops:	20 *	
► HSTP			
 STP Configure 		OK .	
 HST Configure 			
 HSTP Part 	Bridge Priority Configuration		
> Security			
> 0oS	MSTI ID:	· · ·	
> Multicast	Bridge Priority:		
> Network Analys	-		
		OK.	
Network Equips			
> Advanced Setup	Root Configuration		

5.5.2 STP Configure

Figure 5-5-1

Rapid Spanning Configuration

Spanning Tree Status: Whether enable stp on switch.
Protocol Version: MSTP is recommended.
Hello Time: Set hello time, it's 2 by default.
Max Age: Set max-age, it's 20 by default.
Forward Delay: Set forward delay, it's 15 by default.
Max Hops: Set max hops, it's 20 by default.

Bridge Priority Configuration

MSTI ID: Choose one MSTI ID. Bridge priority: Set bridge priority of the MSTI ID.

Root Configuration

MSTI ID: Choose one MSTI ID. Root: Set the MSTI ID is primary root or secondary root.



Figure 5-5-2

View information of spanning tree running

5.5.3 MSTP

5.5.3.1 MSTP Overview Background of MSTP Disadvantages of STP and RSTP

STP does not support rapid state transition of ports. A newly elected root port or designated port must wait twice the forward delay time before transiting to the forwarding state, even if it is a port on a point-to-point link or it is an edge port (an edge port refers to a port that directly connects to a user terminal rather than to another device or a shared LAN segment.)

The rapid spanning tree protocol (RSTP) is an optimized version of STP. RSTP allows a newly elected root port or designated port to

enter the forwarding state much quicker under certain conditions than in STP. As a result, it takes a shorter time for the network to reach the final topology stability.

RSTP supports rapid convergence. Like STP, it is of the following disadvantages: all bridges in a LAN are on the same spanning tree; redundant links cannot be blocked by VLAN; the packets of all VLANs are forwarded along the same spanning tree.

Features of MSTP

The multiple spanning tree protocol (MSTP) overcomes the shortcomings of STP and RSTP. In addition to support for rapid network convergence, it also allows data flows of different VLANs to be forwarded along their own paths, thus providing a better load sharing mechanism for redundant links.

MSTP features the following:

- MSTP supports mapping VLANs to MST instances by means of a VLAN-to-instance mapping table.
- MSTP introduces "instance" (integrates multiple VLANs into a set) and can bind multiple VLANs to an instance, thus saving communication overhead and improving resource utilization.
- MSTP divides a switched network into multiple regions, each containing multiple spanning trees that are independent of one another.
- MSTP prunes a ring network into a network with tree topology, preventing packets from being duplicated and forwarded in a network endlessly. Furthermore, it offers multiple redundant paths for forwarding data, and thus achieves load balancing for forwarding VLAN data.
- MSTP is compatible with STP and RSTP.

Basic MSTP Terminologies

MST region

A multiple spanning tree region (MST region) comprises multiple physically-interconnected MSTP-enabled switches and the corresponding network segments connected to these switches. These switches have the same region name, the same VLAN-to-MSTI mapping configuration and the same MSTP revision level. A switched network can contain multiple MST regions. You can group multiple switches into one MST region by using the corresponding MSTP configuration commands.

MSTI

A multiple spanning tree instance (MSTI) refers to a spanning tree in an MST region.

Multiple spanning trees can be established in one MST region. These spanning trees are independent of each other.

VLAN mapping table

A VLAN mapping table is a property of an MST region. It contains information about how VLANs are mapped to MSTIs.

IST

An internal spanning tree (IST) is a spanning tree in an MST region. ISTs together with the common spanning tree (CST) form the common and internal spanning tree (CIST) of the entire switched network. An IST is a special MSTI; it is a branch of CIST in the MST region.

СЅТ

A CST is a single spanning tree in a switched network that connects all MST regions in the network. If you regard each MST region in the network as a switch, then the CST is the spanning tree generated by STP or RSTP running on the "switches".

CIST

A CIST is the spanning tree in a switched network that connects all switches in the network. It comprises the ISTs and the CST.

Region root

A region root is the root of the IST or an MSTI in an MST region. Different spanning trees in an MST region may have different topologies and thus have different region roots.

Common root bridge

The common root bridge is the root of the CIST.

Port role

During MSTP calculation, the following port roles exist: root port, designated port, master port, region boundary port, alternate port, and backup port.

- A root port is used to forward packets to the root.
- A designated port is used to forward packets to a downstream network segment or switch.
- A master port connects an MST region to the common root. The path from the master port to the common root is the shortest path between the MST region and the common root. In the CST, the master port is the root port of the region, which is considered as a node. The master port is a special boundary port. It is a root port in the IST/CIST while a master port in the other MSTIs.
- A region boundary port is located on the boundary of an MST region and is used to connect one MST region to another MST region, an STP-enabled region or an RSTP-enabled region
- An alternate port is a secondary port of a root port or master port and is used for rapid transition. With the root port or master port being blocked, the alternate port becomes the new root port or master port.
- A backup port is the secondary port of a designated port and is used for rapid transition. With the designated port being blocked, the backup port becomes the new designated port fast and begins to forward data seamlessly. When two ports of an MSTP-enabled switch are interconnected, the switch blocks one of the two ports to eliminate the loop that occurs. The blocked port is the backup port.

Port state

In MSTP, a port can be in one of the following three states:

- Forwarding state. Ports in this state can forward user packets and receive/send BPDU packets.
- Learning state. Ports in this state can receive/send BPDU packets.
- Discarding state. Ports in this state can only receive BPDU packets.

Principle of MSTP

MSTP divides a Layer 2 network into multiple MST regions. The CSTs are generated between these MST regions, and multiple spanning

trees (also called MSTIs) can be generated in each MST region. As well as RSTP, MSTP uses configuration BPDUs for spanning tree calculation. The only difference is that the configuration BPDUs for MSTP carries the MSTP configuration information on the switches.

Calculate the CIST

Through comparing configuration BPDUs, the switch of the highest priority in the network is selected as the root of the CIST. In each MST region, an IST is calculated by MSTP. At the same time, MSTP regards each MST region as a switch to calculate the CSTs of the network. The CSTs, together with the ISTs, form the CIST of the network.

Calculate an MSTI

In an MST region, different MSTIs are generated for different VLANs based on the VLAN-to-MSTI mappings. Each spanning tree is calculated independently, in the same way as how STP/RSTP is calculated.

Implement STP algorithm

In the beginning, each switch regards itself as the root, and generates a configuration BPDU for each port on it as a root, with the root path cost being 0, the ID of the designated bridge being that of the switch, and the designated port being itself.

1) Each switch sends out its configuration BPDUs and operates in the following way when receiving a configuration BPDU on one of its ports from another switch:

- If the priority of the configuration BPDU is lower than that of the configuration BPDU of the port itself, the switch discards the BPDU and does not change the configuration BPDU of the port.
- If the priority of the configuration BPDU is higher than that of the configuration BPDU of the port itself, the switch replaces the configuration BPDU of the port with the received one and compares it with those of other ports on the switch to obtain the one with the highest priority.

2) Configuration BPDUs are compared as follows:

For MSTP, CIST configuration information is generally expressed as follows:

(Root bridge ID, External path cost, Master bridge ID, Internal path cost, Designated bridge ID, ID of sending port, ID of receiving port), so the compared as follows:

- The smaller the Root bridge ID of the configuration BPDU is, the higher the priority of the configuration BPDU is.
- For configuration BPDUs with the same Root bridge IDs, the External path costs are compared.
- For configuration BPDUs with both the same Root bridge ID and the same External path costs, Master bridge ID, Internal path cost, Designated bridge ID, ID of sending port, ID of receiving port are compared in turn.

For MSTP, MSTI configuration information is generally expressed as follows:

(Instance bridge ID, Internal path costs, Designated bridge ID, ID of sending port, ID of receiving port), so the compared as follows

- The smaller the Instance bridge ID of the configuration BPDU is, the higher the priority of the configuration BPDU is.
- For configuration BPDUs with the same Instance bridge IDs, Internal path costs are compared.
- For configuration BPDUs with both the same Instance bridge ID and the same Internal path costs, Designated bridge ID, ID of sending port, ID of receiving port are compared in turn.

3) A spanning tree is calculated as follows:

• Determining the root bridge

Root bridges are selected by configuration BPDU comparing. The switch with the smallest root ID is chosen as the root bridge.

• Determining the root port

For each switch in a network, the port on which the configuration BPDU with the highest priority is received is chosen as the root port of the switch.

• Determining the designated port

First, the switch calculates a designated port configuration BPDU for each of its ports using the root port configuration BPDU and the root port path cost, with the root ID being replaced with that of the root port configuration BPDU, root path cost being replaced with the sum of the root path cost of the root port configuration BPDU and the path cost of the root port, the ID of the designated bridge being replaced with that of the switch, and the ID of the designated port being replaced with that of the port.

The switch then compares the calculated configuration BPDU with the original configuration BPDU received from the corresponding port on another switch. If the latter takes precedence over the former, the switch blocks the local port and keeps the port's configuration BPDU unchanged, so that the port can only receive configuration messages and cannot forward packets. Otherwise, the switch sets the local port to the designated port, replaces the original configuration BPDU of the port with the calculated one and advertises it regularly.

MSTP Implementation on Switches

MSTP is compatible with both STP and RSTP. That is, MSTP-enabled switches can recognize the protocol packets of STP and RSTP and use them for spanning tree calculation. In addition to the basic MSTP functions, the switches also provide the following functions for users to manage their switches.

- · Root bridge hold
- Root bridge backup
- Root guard
- BPDU guard
- Loop guard
- TC-BPDU attack guard
- BPDU packet drop

STP-related Standards

STP-related standards include the following.

- IEEE 802.1D: spanning tree protocol
- IEEE 802.1w: rapid spanning tree protocol

• IEEE 802.1s: multiple spanning tree protocol

5.5.3.2 MST Configure

For two or more switches to be in the same MST region, they must have the same VLAN-to-instance mapping, the same configuration revision number, and the same name.

A region can have one member or multiple members with the same MST configuration; each member must be capable of processing RSTP BPDUs. There is no limit to the number of MST regions in a network, but each region can only support up to 16 spanning-tree instances. You can assign a VLAN to only one spanning-tree instance at a time.

· · · · ·		aaaa a 💘		****	-
SG3226FP		RUPP 🖃 🗍 STP Curlig	are 😥 HST Configure 🛛		welcome guest i exit
	HST Region Configuration				
System	Names				
> SNMP	Naties				
Port Management	MSTL ID:		•		
Redundancy	VER		•		
 Link Apprepation 	Revision	¢			
+ LACP					
+ Smart/Monitor Link		OK.			
+ R82P					
> MSTP	Bpda Global Configuration				
 STP Configure 					
+ HST Configure	Digest Snooping Status:	O Exable	Disable		
 HSTP Part 	Opdu Filter Status:	() Enable	(B Disable		
> Security	Body Geard Status:	Official	() Disable		
> QoS					
> Multicast.	Bpdu Guard Recovery Interval Status	() Enable	Blisable		
Network Analysis		OK			

Figure 5-5-3

MST Region Configuration

Name: MST region name MSTI ID: Create MSTP instance number. VID: Create VLAN map to instance. Revision: Defined by yourself.

Bpdu Set

Digest Snooping Status: Whether enable digest snooping on global. Bpdu Filter: Whether enable bpdu filter on global. Protection state: Whether enable bpdu guard on global.

Bpdu Interval state: You can set bpdu interval here and input the

time. View Instance

View instances running on the switch.

5.5.3.3 MSTP Port

If a loop occurs, the MSTP uses the port priority when selecting an interface to put into the forwarding state. You can assign higher priority values (lower numerical values) to interfaces that you want selected first and lower priority values (higher numerical values) that you want selected last. If all interfaces have the same priority value, the MSTP puts the interface with the lowest interface number in the forwarding state and blocks the other interfaces.

The MSTP path cost default value is derived from the media speed of an interface. If a loop occurs, the MSTP uses cost when selecting an interface to put in the forwarding state. You can assign lower cost values to interfaces that you want selected first and higher cost values that you want selected last. If all interfaces have the same cost value, the MSTP puts the interface with the lowest interface number in the forwarding state and blocks the other interfaces.

		- g -
SG3226FP	Biteme R8PP (#) STP Configure (#) HST Configure (#) HSTP Fort (#) STP Port Configuration	welcome guest ! ex
> System > SNMP	Peet Type:	
> Port Management	Pert Lat: * Edge Port: © True O False	
 Redundancy Link Apprepation 	P2P Stokes: P2P Constant P2P Stokes: P2P Constant P2P Stokes: P2P S	
+ LACP + Smart/Monitor Link	Path Cost:	
+ RRPP + MSTP	Post Priority: (A multiple of 15)	
STP Configure MST Configure	OK	
MSTP Port	Port Hcheck Configuration	
> Security > QoS	Put Type:	
> Multicast	Port List: -	
Network Analysis	ОК	

Figure 5-5-4

STP Port Configuration

Port type & List: Choose the port you want to set. Edge Port: Set the port to be edge port or not.

P2P Status: Set the port to be P2P port or not. Path Cost: Set the port cost on global. Port Priority: Set the port priority on global.

Port Mcheck Configuration

Port MST Configuration Port Type: Fa 0	/
Port List:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Digest Snooping: 🧟 🖯	nable C Disable
Bodu Filtering/Guard Status: 🖲 E	nable C Disable
MST2:	*
Path Cost:	
Port Priority:	* (A multiple of 16)
	OK

ew	Pa	rt	Sta	tus

Msti	Port	Port Role	Status	Port cost	Port priority	Digest Snooping	P2p port	Edge port	Protocol Mode
0	Fa 0/01	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/02	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/03	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/04	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/05	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/06	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/07	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/08	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP
0	Fa 0/09	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	NSTP
0	Fa 0/10	Disb	BLK	0	128	Disable	Shr	False	MSTP

Refresh

Figure 5-5-5

Port MST Configuration

Port type & list: Choose the port you want to set.

Digest Snooping: Whether enable digest snooping on port.

Bpdu Filtering/Guard Status: Whether enable BPDU filter or Guard on port.

MSTI: Choose MSTI you want to set.

Path Cost: Input cost value in the MSTI

Port Priority: Input priority value in the MSTI.

View Ports Status

View port status in every instance of stp.

Chapter 6: Security

6.1 ACL

6.1.1 ACL Overview

As the network scale and network traffic are increasingly growing, security control and bandwidth assignment play a more and more important role in network management. Filtering data packets can prevent a network from being accessed by unauthorized users efficiently while controlling network traffic and saving network resources. Access control lists (ACL) are often used to filter packets with configured matching rules.

Upon receiving a packet, the switch compares the packet with the rules of the ACL applied on the current port to permit or discard the packet.

The rules of an ACL can be referenced by other functions that need traffic classification, such as QoS. ACLs classify packets using a series of conditions known as rules. The conditions can be based on source addresses, destination addresses and port numbers carried in the packets.

According to their application purposes, ACLs fall into the following four types.

- Basic ACL. Rules are created based on source IP addresses only.
- Advanced ACL. Rules are created based on the Layer 3 and Layer 4 information such as the source and destination IP addresses, type of the protocols carried by IP, protocol-specific features, and so on.
- Layer 2 ACL. Rules are created based on the Layer 2 information such as source and destination MAC addresses, VLAN priorities, type of Layer 2 protocol, and so on.
- User-defined ACL. An ACL of this type matches packets by comparing the strings retrieved from the packets with specified strings. It defines the byte it begins to perform "and" operation with the mask on the basis of packet headers.

6.1.2 Understanding Access Control Parameters

Before configuring ACLs on the switches, you must have a thorough understanding of the access control parameters (ACPs). ACPs are

referred to as *masks* in the switch CLI commands output. Each ACE has a mask and a rule. The Classification Field or mask is the field of interest on which you want to perform an action. The specific values associated with a given mask are called *rules*. Packets can be classified on these Layer 2, Layer 3, and Layer 4 fields:

- Layer 2 fields: Source MAC address (Specify all 48 bits.) Destination MAC address (Specify all 48 bits.) Ethertype (16-bit ethertype field)
- You can use any combination or all of these fields simultaneously to define a flow.
- Layer 3 fields:

IP source address (Specify all 32 IP source address bits to define the flow, or specify a user defined subnet. There are no restrictions on the IP subnet to be specified.) IP destination address (Specify all 32 IP destination address bits to define the flow, or specify a user-defined subnet. There are no restrictions on the IP subnet to be specified.)

- You can use any combination or all of these fields simultaneously to define a flow.
- Layer 4 fields:
 - TCP (You can specify a TCP source, destination port number, or both at the same time.)

UDP (You can specify a UDP source, destination port number, or both at the same time.)

6.1.3 ACL Config

						X			-	1
100		🖶 Home ST	P Configure 🗉 🚺 🗛	Corthy El					welcome gue	st t exit
	\$G3226FP	ACL Configuration	~							
	> System	Her compilies								
	> SNMP		AGL Type:	Standard NA	CAOL *					
			Permit/Deny	DEBMIT						
	> Port Management									
	Redundancy		ce MAC Address Type		٠					
	> Security		Source MAC Address:	00-00-00-00-00	90-00 *					
	▶ ACL		Source MIAC Mask:	00-00-00-00-0	. 00-00					
	 ACL Config 									
	 Time Range 		Ces:		(0-7)					
	+ VLAN		DSCP:		(0-6	0				
	MAC Config	Policy-map Co	ofiguration							
	▶ 802.3x		Counter:							
	DHCP Config									
	► ARP		Police:		(0-1	5000KB/5,0 to car	ncel)			
	> Qo5		Capture Port:		(1-2	0				
	> Multicast		Rearte	CoS Rewrite						
				000 100100						
_										
			🖰 Home	S	TP Config	ure 🛛	ACL	Config 🖂		
						_				
	SG3226FP									
			ACL Cont	igurat	tion					
> 9	System									
						ACL T	ype:	Extended MAC /	ACL 🔻	
> 5	SNMP									
							_			
> 0	Port Managen	nent				Permit/[Deny	PERMIT	*	
	orchanagen	incine incine								
	Redundancy			Cou	Irce MAC	Addrose -	Typo	Host		
× F	Redundancy			300	ITCE MAC	HUUICSS	Type	nusi	•	
> 5	Security				Source I	MAC Add	ress:	00-00-00-00-00-	01	*
► I	ACL									
					Sourc	e MAC N	lask:	ff-ff-ff-ff-ff		*
+ 1	ACL Config									
					tion MAC		T	11		
+ 1	Time Range			Jesuna	LION MAC	Address	rype	Host	•	
→ V	/LAN			De	stination I	AC Add	ress:	00-00-00-00-00-	02	*
► 1	MAC Config									
					Destinatio	n MAC M	lask:	ff-ff-ff-ff-ff		*
N 5	802.1x									
							· · · ·	-		(0.7)
	DUCD Canfin						Cos:	7		(0-7)
► L	DHCP Config									
						D	SCP:	63		(0-63)
▶ /	ARP					U		001		(0.00)

Figure 6-1-1

There are 5 types of ACL on the switch, as Standard MAC ACL, Extended MAC ACL, Standard IP ACL, Extended IP ACL and Protocol type-code. Here shows you the configuration of Standard MAC ACL for example. ACL Type: Choose one type of ACL.

Permit/Deny: Set the switch permit packets matched ACL to go through or discard.

Source MAC Address Type: Set all MAC addresses (any) or specific MAC addresses (host)

Source Mac Address: Fill source MAC address you want to control. Source MAC Mask: Fill source MAC mask you want to control

Destination MAC Address: Fill source MAC address you want to control.

Destination MAC Mask: Fill Destination MAC mask you want to control

Counter: Fill name, then will create a counter of packets match ACL. **Police:** Speed restrict of flow matched ACL.

Capture Port: If input port number, the flow matched ACL will captured to the port.

Cos: If fill a cos, it means specify flow with this cos value is matched the ACL.

Dscp: If fill a dscp, it means specify flow with this dscp value is matched the ACL.

Cos rewrite: 1p priority will be rewrite to the new value if flow matched ACL.

DSCP rewrite: Dscp will be rewrite to the new value if flow matched ACL.

Time Bucket: First create a time-range what time you want ACL gets effect, then check it.

6.1.4 Time Range

		- <u>1</u>
SG3226FP	Hume HST Configure HSTP Port ALL Config in time sample Time Range Configuration	welcome guest !
> System	Name:	
> Port Management	Made: Absolute Operiodic	
Redundancy	Start time: * (example: 22:10 31/12/2012)	
Security	End time: * (example: 22:10 31/12/2012)	
ACL ACL Canfig Time Range	οκ	
+ VLAN	View Time Range	
 MAC Config 802.1x 	Name Mode Time Delete	
DHCP Config	A total of 0 Per page show 5 🗸 First Prev Next Last	
► ARP		
> QoS		
> Multicast		
> Network Analysis		

Figure 6-1-2

Name: Fill a time-range name so that you can choose and bind it into a ACL.

Mode: The time-range runs mode, absolute or periodic.

Start time: Fill time point which ACL get start.

End time: Fill time point which ACL get off effect.

6.2 VLAN

6.2.1 Introduction to VLAN

The traditional Ethernet is a broadcast network, where all hosts are in the same broadcast domain and connected with each other through hubs or switches. Hubs and switches, which are the basic network connection devices, have limited forwarding functions.

- A hub is a physical layer device without the switching function, so it forwards the received packet to all ports except the inbound port of the packet.
- A switch is a link layer device which can forward a packet according to the MAC address of the packet. A switch builds a table of MAC addresses mapped to associated ports with that address and only sends a known MAC's traffic to one port. When the switch receives a broadcast packet or an unknown unicast packet whose MAC address is not included in the MAC address table of the switch, it

will forward the packet to all the ports except the inbound port of the packet.

- The above scenarios could result in the following network problems.
- Large quantity of broadcast packets or unknown unicast packets may exist in a network, wasting network resources.
- A host in the network receives a lot of packets whose destination is not the host itself, causing potential serious security problems.
- Related to the point above, someone on a network can monitor broadcast packets and unicast packets and learn of other activities on the network. Then they can attempt to access other resources on the network, whether or not they are authorized to do this.

Isolating broadcast domains is the solution for the above problems. The traditional way is to use routers, which forward packets according to the destination IP address and does not forward broadcast packets in the link layer. However, routers are expensive and provide few ports, so they cannot split the network efficiently. Therefore, using routers to isolate broadcast domains has many limitations.

The Virtual Local Area Network (VLAN) technology is developed for switches to control broadcasts in LANs.

A VLAN can span multiple physical spaces. This enables hosts in a VLAN to be located in different physical locations.

By creating VLANs in a physical LAN, you can divide the LAN into multiple logical LANs, each of which has a broadcast domain of its own. Hosts in the same VLAN communicate in the traditional Ethernet way. However, hosts in different VLANs cannot communicate with each other directly but need the help of network layer devices, such as routers and Layer 3 switches.

6.2.2 Advantages of VLANs

Compared with traditional Ethernet technology, VLAN technology delivers the following benefits:

- Confining broadcast traffic within individual VLANs. This saves bandwidth and improves network performance.
- Improving LAN security. By assigning user groups to different VLANs, you can isolate them at Layer 2. To enable communication between VLANs, routers or Layer 3 switches are required.

 Flexible virtual workgroup creation. As users from the same workgroup can be assigned to the same VLAN regardless of their physical locations, network construction and maintenance is much easier and more flexible.

(10.0						- Hills R
SG3226FP	🛢 Ho	me MSTP	Port 🗟 🛛	CL Config 🖳 🛛 Time	Range 🙁 VLAN 🕱				welcome guest ! e
563226FP	Config	VLAN Name							
> System				VID		H. for example:26			
> SNMP						rs, for exampleize			
Port Management			VLAN	Same:	(Optional)				
> Redundancy				Add	Delete				
> Security									
► ACL.		Batch Config							
 ACL Config 	YLAN	Batch Coning	uración						
 Time Range 					Batch VLAN				
+ VLAN	VLAN	Configuratio							
MAC Config									
▶ 802.1×	Pert	Link Type	PVID		Egress Ru	de .		Detail	
DHCP Config				Tag		Unta	oped		
► ARP	Gi 0/01	Access 🗸	1				1).	View	
> QoS	Gi 0/02	Access 🗸	1				1 ₀	View	
> Multicast	Gi 0/03	Access ¥	1					View	
> Network Analysis	G	Access V	1					View	

Figure 6-2-1

Config VLAN Name

VID: Input VID you want to create.

VLAN Name: Input the name of VLAN you want to create, then press Add to create.

VLAN Config

Link type: Choose Access, Trunk or Hybrid of the port you want to set.

PVID: Input PIVD of the port.

Tag: Click the blank and input tag VIDs. Cannot input in access mode. Untagged: Click the blank and input untagged VIDs. Only can input in Hybrid mode.

Batch VLAN

SG3226FP	Home HSTP Port AL Cosfig Time Range VAAN Home VAAN Home VAAN	welcome guest ex
> System	Port Type: Gr d/	
> Port Management	Port List: *	
Redundancy	Link Type: Access	
> Security	PVID: * (Value:1-4094)	
ACL ACL Config Time Range	×	
+ VLAN	Config VLAN Name	
▶ MAC Config ▶ 802.1x	VD: * (Value:2-4994)	
DHCP Config	VLAN Name: (when the input is empty, the name of the default VLAN *)	
+ ARP	Add Delete	
³ QoS ³ Multicast ³ Network Analysis	Tatura	

Figure 6-2-2

802.1Q VLAN Port Configuration

Port Type & List: You can input many ports number which you want to set, eg.1, 2, 3-5. **Link type:** Access. Trunk or Hybrid.

PVID: Input PVID of these ports.

Configure VLAN Name

VID: Input VID you want to create.

VLAN Name: Input the name of VLAN you want to create, and then press Add to create.



Figure 6-2-3

View VLAN configuration on switch.

6.3 MAC Config 6.3.1 MAC address Overview Introduction to MAC Address Table

An Ethernet switch is mainly used to forward packets at the data link layer, that is, transmit the packets to the corresponding ports according to the destination MAC address of the packets. To forward packets quickly, a switch maintains a MAC address table, which is a Layer 2 address table recording the MAC address-to-forwarding port association. Each entry in a MAC address table contains the following fields:

- Destination MAC address
- ID of the VLAN which a port belongs to
- · Forwarding egress port number on the local switch
- When forwarding a packet, an Ethernet switch adopts one of the two forwarding methods based upon the MAC address table entries.
- Unicast forwarding: If the destination MAC address carried in the packet is included in a MAC address table entry, the switch forwards the packet through the forwarding egress port in the entry.
- Broadcast forwarding: If the destination MAC address carried in the packet is not included in the MAC address table, the switch broadcasts the packet to all ports except the one that originally received the packet.

Introduction to MAC Address Learning

MAC address table entries can be updated and maintained through the following two ways:

- Manual configuration
- MAC address learning

Generally, the majority of MAC address entries are created and maintained through MAC address learning.

Managing MAC Address Table Aging of MAC address table

To fully utilize a MAC address table, which has a limited capacity, the switch uses an aging mechanism for updating the table. That is, the switch starts an aging timer for an entry when dynamically creating

the entry. The switch removes the MAC address entry if no more packets with the MAC address recorded in the entry are received within the aging time.

Entries in a MAC address table

Entries in a MAC address table fall into the following categories according to their characteristics and configuration methods:

- Static MAC address entry: Also known as permanent MAC address entry. This type of MAC address entries are added/removed manually by the network operator and cannot age out by themselves. Using static MAC address entries can greatly reduce broadcast packets and are suitable for networks where network devices seldom change.
- Dynamic MAC address entry: This type of MAC addresses entries age out after the configured aging time. They are generated by the MAC address learning mechanism or configured manually.
- Blackhole MAC address entry: This type of MAC address entries are configured manually. A switch discards the packets destined for or originated from the MAC addresses contained in blackhole MAC address entries. Blackhole entries are configured for filtering out frames with specific source or destination MAC addresses.

	10.0 m						
SG3226FP		Time Range	ALAN 🗵 Sta	tic NAC Address 🔣			welcome guest I exit
> System	HAC Address Bind						
> SNMP	MAC /	Address:					
> Port Management		Port: Gi 0/01		*			
> Redundancy	VLAN ID(1	-4094):					
> Security	arity						
+ ACL			Add				
+ VLAN							
MAC Config	Show Mac Address Table						
+ Static MAC Address	MAC Address	Part	Vid	VLAN Name	Type	Delete	
 MAC Address Filter 	A total of 0 Per page	show 5 💙 First	Prev Net	t Lest 💙			
 MAC Address Learn 							
 MAC Aging Time 							
▶ 802.1×							
DHCP Config							
▶ ARP							
> QoS							

6.3.2 Static MAC Address

Figure 6-3-1

MAC Address: Input MAC address you want to bind. Port: Choose the port you want the MAC address bind to. VLAN ID (1-4094): Input the VLAN ID you want the MAC address bind to.

6.3.3 MAC Address Filter

			****	-
\$03226FP	Harne Time Range (a) VLAN (a) Static HAC Adds	NAC MEAN THE D		welcome quest I esit
	MAC Address Filter Configuration			
> System	Tilter Type	v		
> SNMP				
Port Management	MAC Address			
> Redundancy	VLAN (D(1-4894)			
> Security				
> ACL	OK			
+ WLIN				
> MAC Config	View PAR: Address Filter Table			
Static MAC Address	MAC Address VM	VAR Name Titler Type	Delete	
 HAC Address Filter 	A total of D Per page above 5 Y First Prev	Not Last		
 MAC Address Learn 				
 MAC Aging Time 				
▶ 842.1x				
DHCP Coefig				
+ 189				
, 612				

Figure 6-3-2

MAC Address: Input MAC address you want to deny. VLAN ID (1-4094): Input the VLAN ID you want the MAC address denied in.

6.3.4 MAC Address Learn

				-
SG322MFP	HAC Address Learning	NAC Address Tiller 🗟 🗰 Kata	Sees Lawn 🗇	welcome guest ! e
> System		Put Type:		
> Port Management		Patible		
Redundancy Security	Redundancy HIC Address Learning Security HIC Address Learning Limit: 0-253.6 to ce limit.			
+ 40. - VLAN	OK			
 HAC Cardig Static HAC Address 	View PAC Address Learning Table			
 MAC Address Filter MAC Address Learn 	Fet	PMC Address Learning	MAC Address Learning Link	
 MAC Aging Time 	6i 6/01	Enable	Disable	
 BE2.3x DHCP Config 	0,92	Evable	Disable	
6 AFP	0,90 Gi 0,904	Enable	Disable	
) QoS	Gi	Enable	Dicable	

Figure 6-3-3

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set. **MAC Address learning limit:** Input the number of MAC learning you want to limit on the port.

6.3.5 MAC Aging Time

	B Home MAC Aging Time B	welcome guest ! e
SG3226FP	MAC Aging Time Configuration	
> System	MAC Aging Time (30-600s) 200 * (30-600s,0 is not apod.)	
> SNMP	MAC Aging Time (30-600s) 200 * (30-600s,0 is not aged.)	
> Port Management	OK .	
> Redundancy		
> Security		
+ ACL		
+ VLAN		
MAC Config		
 Static MAC Address 		
 MAC Address Filter 		
MAC Address Learn		
 MAC Aging Time 		
▶ 802.1x		
EHCP Config		
▶ ARP		
> QoS		

Figure 6-3-4

Input aging time and press OK.

6.4 IEEE802.1x

6.4.1 Introduction to 802.1x

The 802.1x protocol (802.1x for short) was developed by IEEE802 LAN/WAN committee to address security issues of wireless LANs. It was then used in Ethernet as a common access control mechanism for LAN ports to address mainly authentication and security problems.

802.1x is a port-based network access control protocol. It authenticates and controls devices requesting for access in terms of the ports of LAN access devices. With the 802.1x protocol employed, a user-side device can access the LAN only when it passes the authentication. Those fail to pass the authentication are denied when accessing the LAN.

Architecture of 802.1x Authentication

802.1x adopts a client/server architecture with three entities: a supplicant system, an authenticator system, and an authentication server system.

- The supplicant system is an entity residing at one end of a LAN segment and is authenticated by the authenticator system at the other end of the LAN segment. The supplicant system is usually a user terminal device. An 802.1x authentication is triggered when a user launches client program on the supplicant system. Note that the client program must support the extensible authentication protocol over LAN (EAPoL).
- The authenticator system is another entity residing at one end of a LAN segment. It authenticates the connected supplicant systems. The authenticator system is usually an 802.1x-supported network device. It provides the port (physical or logical) for the supplicant system to access the LAN.
- The authentication server system is an entity that provides authentication service to the authenticator system. Normally in the form of a RADIUS server, the authentication server system serves to perform AAA (authentication, authorization, and accounting) services to users. It also stores user information, such as user name, password, the VLAN a user belongs to, priority, and the ACLs (access control list) applied.

The four basic concepts related to the above three entities are PAE, controlled port and uncontrolled port, the valid direction of a controlled port and the way a port is controlled.

PAE

A PAE (port access entity) is responsible for implementing algorithms and performing protocol-related operations in the authentication mechanism.

- The authenticator system PAE authenticates the supplicant systems when they log into the LAN and controls the status (authorized/unauthorized) of the controlled ports according to the authentication result.
- The supplicant system PAE responds to the authentication requests received from the authenticator system and submits user

authentication information to the authenticator system. It also sends authentication requests and disconnection requests to the authenticator system PAE.

Controlled port and uncontrolled port

The Authenticator system provides ports for supplicant systems to access a LAN. Logically, a port of this kind is divided into a controlled port and an uncontrolled port.

- The uncontrolled port can always send and receive packets. It mainly serves to forward EAPoL packets to ensure that a supplicant system can send and receive authentication requests.
- The controlled port can be used to pass service packets when it is in authorized state. It is blocked when not in authorized state. In this case, no packets can pass through it.
- Controlled port and uncontrolled port are two properties of a port. Packets reaching a port are visible to both the controlled port and uncontrolled port of the port.

The valid direction of a controlled port

When a controlled port is in unauthorized state, you can configure it to be a unidirectional port, which sends packets to supplicant systems only.

By default, a controlled port is a unidirectional port.

The way a port is controlled

A port of the switch can be controlled in the following two ways.

- Port-based authentication. When a port is controlled in this way, all the supplicant systems connected to the port can access the network without being authenticated after one supplicant system among them passes the authentication. And when the authenticated supplicant system goes offline, the others are denied as well.
- MAC address-based authentication. All supplicant systems connected to a port have to be authenticated individually in order to access the network. And when a supplicant system goes offline, the others are not affected.

The Mechanism of an 802.1x Authentication System

IEEE 802.1x authentication system uses the extensible authentication protocol (EAP) to exchange information between supplicant systems and the authentication servers.

- EAP protocol packets transmitted between the supplicant system PAE and the authenticator system PAE are encapsulated as EAPoL packets.
- EAP protocol packets transmitted between the authenticator system PAE and the RADIUS server can either be encapsulated as EAP over RADIUS (EAPOR) packets or be terminated at system PAEs. The system PAEs then communicate with RADIUS servers through password authentication protocol (PAP) or challengehandshake authentication protocol (CHAP) packets.
- When a supplicant system passes the authentication, the authentication server passes the information about the supplicant system to the authenticator system. The authenticator system in turn determines the state (authorized or unauthorized) of the controlled port according to the instructions (accept or reject) received from the RADIUS server.

4	SG3226FP	Home MAC Aging Time (x) 802.3 x Config Ex	welcome guest ! exit
	SG3226FP	802.1X Configuration	
	> System	802.1x Status: Cable () Disable	
	> SNMP	Berry Street Ornand	
	> Port Management	OK	
	Redundancy		
	> Security		
	+ ACL	Authenticate Mode: Authenticate	
	+ VLAN	Authenticate Modes O Radius Server Local Authenticate	
	MAC Config	OK	
	▶ 802.1x		
	+ 802.1x Config	Radius Server Configuration	
	+ 802.1x Local		
	+ 802.1x Port	Radius Server IP Address: 192.160.2.1 *	
DetCP Ceeling Authentication Parts 1812 ARP Account Parts 1813		Authentication Port: 1812 *	
		Account Part: 1813 *	
	2 QoS	flate Kee	
	> Multicast	Share Key: 12345678 *	

6.4.2 IEEE802.1x Config

Figure 6-4-1

802.1X Mode: Whether enable 802.1X function.

Authenticate Mode: There two types of authenticate mode, radius server or local.

Radius Server IP Address: IP address of radius server.

Authentication Port: Port used for authentication, 1812 by default. Account Port: Port used for account, 1813 by default.

Share Key: The share key is used for radius sever, 12345678 by default.

802.1X Authorized Work Mode					
Authorized Work Mode:	C port	€ mac			
	ОК				
Other Configuration					
Re-Authentication:	C Enable	C Disable			
Dot1x MaxReq:	2	8 (1-10)			
Dot1x reAuthMax:	2	* (1-10)			
Supplicant Timeout:	60	* (1-255)			
Re-Authentication Period:	300	* (10-65535)			
Quiet Period:	60	* (0-65535)			
Server Timeout:	45	* (1-255)			
Tx Period:	30	* (0-65535)			
	ОК				

Figure 6-4-2

Authorized Work Mode: Set authorized work is based on port or MAC.

Re-Authentication: Whether enable re-authentication.

Dot1x MaxReq: Times of 802.1x max request.

Dot1x reAuthMax: Times of max re-auth.

Supplicant Timeout: Set time of supplicant timeout, 60 by default. Re-Authentication Period: Set time of re-authentication period, 300 by default.

Quiet Period: Set time of quiet period, 60 by default.

Server Timeout: Set time of server timeout, 45 by default.

Tx Period: Set time of tx period, 30 by default.
6.4.3 802.1x Local

	114 C			
SG3226FP	BIO2.1X Local Authenticate Con	812.tx Config IX 812.tx Local IX		welcome guest i e
> System	Port	Type: All		
 SNMP Port Management 	UserN	ane:		
> Redundancy	Pass	word:		
> Security	Confirm Pass	word:		
ACL VLAN MAC Config		ОК		
▶ 802.1x	Local Authenticate Informatio			
+ 802.1x Config	Port	Userflame	Delete	
+ 802.1x Local		ow 5 V First Prev Next Last V		
+ BIZ-1x Port	A total of a page an			
DHCP Config				
► AEP				
^{>} QoS				
> Multicast				

Figure 6-4-3

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set. UserName: Input username for local authenticate. Password: Input password. Confirm Password: Confirm the password.

6.4.4 802.1x Port

	B Home MAC Ag	ing Time 🗐 802.1x Config 🗐 802.1x	Local 🗟 802.1x Port 🖬		welcome guest ! e
\$G3226FP	802.1X Port Status C	onfiguration			
> System			_		
> SNMP		Port Type: Gi 0/	V		
> Port Management		Ports			
Redundancy	Lat	senticate Status: Auto	v		
,	~~~				
> Security		Host Mode: Single Host	*		
♦ ACL					
+ VLAN		OK			
▶ MAC Config					
▶ 802.1x	View 802.1X Port Sta	atus			
 802.1x Config 	Pert	Authenticate Status	Naximum Account Number	Current Account Number	
 802.1x Local 	Gi 0/01	Force Authorized		0	
 802.1x Part 	Gi 0/02	Force Authorized	1	0	
DHCP Centig	Gi 0/03	Force Authorized	1	0	
	Gi 0/04	Force Authorized	1	0	
▶ ARP	Gi 0/05	Force Authorized	1	0	
> QoS	Gi 0/06	Force Authorized	1	0	
> Multicast	Gi 0/07	Force Authorized	1	0	
muncast	Gi 0/08	Force Authorized	1	0	

Figure 6-4-4

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set.

Authenticate Status: There are 3 modes, Auto, Force Authorized and Force Unauthorized. The default is automatic.

Host Mode: Choose one host or more than one host on the port.

6.5 DHCP

6.5.1 Introduction to DHCP

With networks getting larger in size and more complicated in structure, lack of available IP addresses becomes the common situation the network administrators have to face, and network configuration becomes a tough task for the network administrators. With the emerging of wireless networks and the using of laptops, the position change of hosts and frequent change of IP addresses also require new technology. Dynamic host configuration protocol (DHCP) is developed to solve these issues.

DHCP adopts a client/server model, where the DHCP clients send requests to DHCP servers for configuration parameters; and the DHCP servers return the corresponding configuration information such as IP addresses to implement dynamic allocation of network resources.

DHCP IP Address Assignment IP Address Assignment Policy

Currently, DHCP provides the following three IP address assignment policies to meet the requirements of different clients:

- Manual assignment. The administrator configures static IP-to-MAC bindings for some special clients, such as a WWW server. Then the DHCP server assigns these fixed IP addresses to the clients.
- Automatic assignment. The DHCP server assigns IP addresses to DHCP clients. The IP addresses will be occupied by the DHCP clients permanently.
- Dynamic assignment. The DHCP server assigns IP addresses to DHCP clients for predetermined period of time. In this case, a DHCP client must apply for an IP address again at the expiration of the period. This policy applies to most clients.

Obtaining IP Addresses Dynamically

A DHCP client undergoes the following four phases to dynamically obtain an IP address from a DHCP server:

1) Discover: In this phase, the DHCP client tries to find a DHCP server by broadcasting a DHCP-DISCOVER packet.

2) Offer: In this phase, the DHCP server offers an IP address. After the DHCP server receives the DHCP-DISCOVER packet from the DHCP client, it chooses an unassigned IP address from the address pool according to the priority order of IP address assignment and then sends the IP address and other configuration information together in a DHCP-OFFER packet to the DHCP client. The sending mode is decided by the flag filed in the DHCP-DISCOVER packet.

3) Select: In this phase, the DHCP client selects an IP address. If more than one DHCP server sends DHCP-OFFER packets to the DHCP client, the DHCP client only accepts the DHCP-OFFER packet that first arrives, and then broadcasts a DHCP-REQUEST packet containing the assigned IP address carried in the DHCP-OFFER packet.

4) Acknowledge: In this phase, the DHCP servers acknowledge the IP address. Upon receiving the DHCP-REQUEST packet, only the selected DHCP server returns a DHCP-ACK packet to the DHCP client to confirm the assignment of the IP address to the client, or returns a DHCP-NAK packet to refuse the assignment of the IP address to the client. When the client receives the DHCP-ACK packet, it broadcasts an ARP packet with the assigned IP address, and uses the IP address only if it does not receive any response within a specified period.

Updating IP Address Lease

After a DHCP server dynamically assigns an IP address to a DHCP client, the IP address keeps valid only within a specified lease time and will be reclaimed by the DHCP server when the lease expires. If the DHCP client wants to use the IP address for a longer time, it must update the IP lease.

By default, a DHCP client updates its IP address lease automatically

by unicasting a DHCP-REQUEST packet to the DHCP server when half of the lease time elapses. The DHCP server responds with a DHCP-ACK packet to notify the DHCP client of a new IP lease if the server can assign the same IP address to the client. Otherwise, the DHCP server responds with a DHCP-NAK packet to notify the DHCP client that the IP address will be reclaimed when the lease time expires.

If the DHCP client fails to update its IP address lease when half of the lease time elapses, it will update its IP address lease by broadcasting a DHCP-REQUEST packet to the DHCP servers again when seveneighths of the lease time elapses. The DHCP server performs the same operations as those described above.

6.5.2 DHCP Packet Format

DHCP has eight types of packets. They have the same format, but the values of some fields in the packets are different. The DHCP packet format is based on that of the BOOTP packets.

Protocol Specification

Protocol specifications related to DHCP include:

- RFC2131: Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol
- RFC2132: DHCP Options and BOOTP Vendor Extensions
- RFC1542: Clarifications and Extensions for the Bootstrap Protocol
- RFC3046: DHCP Relay Agent Information option

6.5.3 DHCP Snooping Configuration Introduction to DHCP Snooping

For the sake of security, the IP addresses used by online DHCP clients need to be tracked for the administrator to verify the corresponding relationship between the IP addresses the DHCP clients obtained from DHCP servers and the MAC addresses of the DHCP clients.

Layer 2 switches can track DHCP client IP addresses through the DHCP snooping function, which listens DHCP broadcast packets.

Introduction to DHCP Snooping Trusted/Untrusted Ports

When an unauthorized DHCP server exists in the network, a DHCP client may obtains an illegal IP address. To ensure that the DHCP clients obtain IP addresses from valid DHCP servers, the switches can specify a port to be a trusted port or an untrusted port by the DHCP snooping function.

- Trusted: A trusted port is connected to an authorized DHCP server directly or indirectly. It forwards DHCP messages to guarantee that DHCP clients can obtain valid IP addresses.
- Untrusted: An untrusted port is connected to an unauthorized DHCP server. The DHCP-ACK or DHCP-OFFER packets received from the port are discarded, preventing DHCP clients from receiving invalid IP addresses.

Overview of DHCP-Snooping Option 82 Introduction to Option 82

Option 82 is the relay agent information option in the DHCP message. It records the location information of the DHCP client.

When a DHCP relay agent (or a device enabled with DHCP snooping) receives a client's request, it adds the Option 82 to the request message and sends it to the server.

The administrator can locate the DHCP client to further implement security control and accounting. The Option 82 supporting server can also use such information to define individual assignment policies of IP address and other parameters for the clients.

Option 82 involves at most 255 sub-options. If Option 82 is defined, at least one sub-option must be defined. Currently the DHCP relay agent supports two sub-options: sub-option 1 (circuit ID sub-option) and sub-option 2 (remote ID sub-option).

Padding content and frame format of Option 82

There is no specification for what should be padded in Option 82. Manufacturers can pad it as required.

By default, the sub-options of Option 82 for the Switches (enabled with DHCP snooping) are padded as follows:

- Sub-option 1 (circuit ID sub-option): Padded with the port index (smaller than the physical port number by 1) and VLAN ID of the port that received the client's request.
- Sub-option 2 (remote ID sub-option): Padded with the bridge MAC address of the DHCP snooping device that received the client's request.

Overview of IP Filtering

A denial-of-service (DoS) attack means an attempt of an attacker sending a large number of forged address requests with different source IP addresses to the server so that the network cannot work normally. The specific effects are as follows:

- The resources on the server are exhausted, so the server does not respond to other requests.
- After receiving such type of packets, a switch needs to send them to the CPU for processing. Too many request packets cause high CPU usage rate. As a result, the CPU cannot work normally.
- The switch can filter invalid IP packets through the DHCP-snooping table and IP static binding table.

DHCP-snooping table

After DHCP snooping is enabled on a switch, a DHCP-snooping table is generated. It is used to record IP addresses obtained from the DHCP server, MAC addresses, the number of the port through which a client is connected to the DHCP-snooping-enabled device, and the number of the VLAN to which the port belongs to. These records are saved as entries in the DHCP-snooping table.

IP static binding table

The DHCP-snooping table only records information about clients that obtains IP address dynamically through DHCP. If a fixed IP address is configured for a client, the IP address and MAC address of the client cannot be recorded in the DHCP-snooping table. Consequently, this client cannot pass the IP filtering of the DHCP-snooping table, thus it cannot access external networks.

To solve this problem, the switch supports the configuration of static binding table entries, which is the binding relationship between IP

address, MAC address, and the port connecting to the client, so that packets of the client can be correctly forwarded.

IP filtering

The switch can filter IP packets in the following two modes:

- Filtering the source IP address in a packet. If the source IP address and the number of the port that receives the packet are consistent with entries in the DHCP-snooping table or static binding table, the switch regards the packet as a valid packet and forwards it; otherwise, the switch drops it directly.
- Filtering the source IP address and the source MAC address in a packet. If the source IP address and source MAC address in the packet, and the number of the port that receives the packet are consistent with entries in the DHCP-snooping table or static binding table, the switch regards the packet as a valid packet and forwards it; otherwise, the switch drops it directly.

		-
SG3226FP	8 Homa STP Configure AD. Config Excelor/Config: CHCP Bind (2)	welcome guest ! exit
	DHCP Configuration	
> System	DHOP Relay: O Enable	
> SNMP	Rewrite DHCP Lease Time: O Eastle B Deable	
Port Management		
Redundancy	Option N2: O Enable	
> Security		
+ AOL	OK	
+ VLAN		
MAC Carring	IP Dhcp Snooping VLAN Status	
▶ 802.1x	Status: # Enable O Deable	
+ DHCP Canfig		
 DHCP Configuration 	V80: -	
+ DHOP Bind	OK	
 DHCP Server Trust 		
+ Option82 Config	View VLAN Of IP Dhcp Snooping	
 Option82 Policy 	THEN TURN OF IT MADE WARRING	

6.5.4 DHCP Configuration

Figure 6-5-1

DHCP Relay: Whether enable DHCP relay.
DHCP Snooping: Whether enable DHCP snooping.
Rewrite DHCP lease Time: Whether need rewrite DHCP lease.
Lease Time: Input the new lease time.
Option 82: Whether enable option 82 of DHCP.
Global Remote ID: Input the remote ID of option 82.

6.5.5 DHCP Bind

	B Home 802.1x Config 🖹 802.1x Loc	al 🗉 602.1x Pert 🗷 DHOP God 2	welcome guest ! ex
SG3226FP	DHCP Bind Configuration		
> System			
> SNMP	Port Type: Gi 0	V	
	Port List:	•	
Port Management			
Redundancy	DHCP Binding Restriction:	* (0-50,0 ins't limit)	
> Security		ОК	
> ACL		OK	
+ VLAN			
MAC Config	View DHCP Binding Restriction		
▶ 802.1x	Port	Restriction Number	
DHCP Cenfig	Gi 0/01	Disable	
+ DHCP Configuration	Gi 0/02	Disable	
+ DHCP Bind	Gi 0/03	Disable	
	Gi 0/04	Disable	
+ DHCP Server Trust	Gi 0/05	Disable	
 Option82 Config 	Gi 0/06	Disable	
 Option82 Policy 	Gi 0/07 Gi 0/08	Disable	
> AEP	Gi 0/08 Gi 0/09	Disable	
	G 6/10	Disable	

Figure 6-5-2

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set. **DHCP Binding Restriction:** Input the number of DHCP address you want to restrict on the port.

6.5.6 DHCP Server Trust

			1
	B Home 802.1x Local 8 802.1x Port 8 DHCP B	Ind 🕱 DricP Server Trust 🖾	welcome guest ! exit
SG3226FP	DHCP Server Trust		
> System	Port Type: Gi 0/	V	
> SNMP	Port type: [Ca ty	•	
> Port Management	Port List:	•	
> Redundancy	DHCP Server Trust: Trust	O Not Trust	
> Security			
▶ ACL	OK		
+ VLAN			
MAC Config	DHCP Server Trust Table		
▶ 802.1x	Port	Trust Status	
DHCP Config	Gi 6/01	Not Trust	
 DHCP Configuration 	Gi 0/02	Not Trust	
 DHCP Bind 	Gi 0/03	Not Trust	
	Gi 0/04	Not Trust	
 DHCP Server Trust 	Gi 0/05	Not Trust	
 Option82 Config 	Gi 0/06	Not Trust	
 Option82 Policy 	Gi 0/07	Not Trust	
	Gi 6/08	Not Trust	
ARP	G 0/09	Net Trust	

Figure 6-5-3

Port Type & List: Choose the port which is connected to the DHCP

Server.

DHCP Server Trust: If the port connect to DHCP server, click Trust, otherwise click Not trust.

6.5.7 Option82 Config

		=			-
100	\$G3226FP	👩 Home 🛛 ACL Config 🗟 DHCP-C	nfgazten 🔬 DHCP Bed 🔬 🧿	Konit Config 🖬	wekcome gassit ! eat!
	303220FF	Option \$2 Mode Configuration			
	> System	Circuital Hode:	Hex •		
	> SNMP				
	> Port Management	Remuteld Mode:	Hex v		
	» Redundancy		OK		
	> Security		-		
	+ AO.	Part Option 82 CircuitId Configuratio			
	= VLAN				
	HWC Carify	Port Type:	GLQ/ *		
	▶ 802.1x	Part List:			
	+ DHCP Carilig	Judec	* 0+2		
	 DHCP Configuration 				
	 DHCP Bind 	VLAN-ID:	*(14	94)	
	 DHCP Server Trust. 	Strap:			
	 Option#2 Config 	VAR	Castar	of (3-4094))	
	 Option#2 Policy 				

Figure 6-5-4

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set.

(Circuit ID)Port Index: Input the index values in circuit ID, usually it's port number -1.

(Circuit ID)VLAN ID: Input VLAN ID of port in circuit. (Remote ID)MAC: Input MAC in remote ID.

6.5.8 Option82 Policy

			+
SG3226FP	Home DHCP Bind (k) DHCP Server Trust (k) Option 82 Policy	Option82 Config (ii) Option82 Policy El	welcome quest
> System	Part Type: GL 0/	v	
Port Management	Part List	•	
Redundancy	Part Option 82 Palicy: Drop	V	
 Security AQL VLAN 		ж	
 VLAN MAC Config 	View Option 82 Policy Table		
▶ 862.3×	Pat	Option 82 Policy	
DHCP Config	GH 0/01.	Replace	
 DHCP Configuration 	GI 8/02	Replace	
+ DHCP Bind	Gi B/03 Gi B/04	Replace	
 DHCP Server Trust 	Gi 6/04 Gi 6/05	Replace	
Option82 Config	GI 8/06	Replace	
Option82 Policy	Gi 8/07	Replace	
	Gi 8/08	Replace	
 ARP 	616/09	Replace	

Figure 6-5-5

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set. Port Option 82 Policy: There 3 modes of op 82 policy, Drop, Replace and Keep.

Introduction to ARP ARP Function

Address Resolution Protocol (ARP) is used to resolve an IP address into a data link layer address.

An IP address is the address of a host at the network layer. To send a network layer packet to a destination host, the device must know the data link layer address (MAC address, for example) of the destination host or the next hop. To this end, the IP address must be resolved into the corresponding data link layer address.

ARP Message Format

ARP messages are classified as ARP request messages and ARP reply messages.

It illustrates the format of these two types of ARP messages. As for an ARP request, all the fields except the hardware address of the receiver field are set. The hardware address of the receiver is what the sender requests for.

As for an ARP reply, all the fields are set.

ARP Table

In an Ethernet, the MAC addresses of two hosts must be available for the two hosts to communicate with each other. Each host in an Ethernet maintains an ARP table, where the latest used IP addressto-MAC address mapping entries are stored. The switches provide the **show arp** command to display the information about ARP mapping entries.

ARP entries in the switch can either be static entries or dynamic entries, as described in.

Introduction to ARP Source MAC Address Consistency Check

An attacker may use the IP or MAC address of another host as the sender IP or MAC address of ARP packets. These ARP packets can cause other network devices to update the corresponding ARP entries incorrectly, thus interrupting network traffic.

To prevent such attacks, you can configure ARP source MAC address consistency check on the switches (operating as gateways). With this function, the device can verify whether an ARP packet is valid by checking the sender MAC address of the ARP packet against the source MAC address in the Ethernet header.

Introduction to ARP Attack Detection Man-in-the-middle attack

According to the ARP design, after receiving an ARP response, a host adds the IP-to-MAC mapping of the sender into its ARP mapping table even if the MAC address is not the real one. This can reduce the ARP traffic in the network, but it also makes ARP spoofing possible.

ARP attack detection

To guard against the man-in-the-middle attacks launched by hackers or attackers, the switches support the ARP attack detection function. All ARP (both request and response) packets passing through the switch are redirected to the CPU, which checks the validity of all the ARP packets by using the DHCP snooping table or the manually configured IP binding table. For description of DHCP snooping table and the manually configured IP binding table, refer to the DHCP snooping section in the part discussing DHCP in this manual. After you enable the ARP attack detection function, the switch will check the following items of an ARP packet: the source MAC address, source IP address, port number of the port receiving the ARP packet, and the ID of the VLAN the port resides. If these items match the entries of the DHCP snooping table or the manual configured IP binding table, the switch will forward the ARP packet; if not, the switch discards the ARP packet.

Introduction to ARP Packet Rate Limit

To prevent the man-in-the-middle attack, a switch enabled with the ARP attack detection function delivers ARP packets to the CPU to check the validity of the packets. However, this causes a new problem: If an attacker sends a large number of ARP packets to a port of a switch, the CPU will get overloaded, causing other functions to fail, and even the whole device to break down. To guard against such attacks, the switches support the ARP packets rate limit

function, which will shut down the attacked port, thus preventing serious impact on the CPU.

With this function enabled on a port, the switch will count the ARP packets received on the port within each second. If the number of ARP packets received on the port per second exceeds the preconfigured value, the switch considers that the port is attacked by ARP packets. In this case, the switch will shut down the port. As the port does not receive any packet, the switch is protected from the ARP packet attack.

At the same time, the switch supports automatic recovery of port state. If a port is shut down by the switch due to high packet rate, the port will revert to the Up state after a configured period of time.

6.6 ARP

6.6.1 ARP Config

	B Home DHCP Server Trust	🗟 Option82 Config 🛞 Option82 Policy 🗟 🚺	P Config 🛛	welcome guest ! exit
SG3226FP	IP Filter/ARP Filter Configurati	88		
> System				
> SNMP	Port T	rpe: Gi 0/		
> Port Management	Pert	List: (Den't set trust	port.)	
Redundancy	ARP N	ter: Enable O Disable		
> Security	IP F	her: @Enable ODisable		
ACL VLAN MAC Config BI2.1x	View ARP/IP Filter Table	ОК		
	view Akry IP Filter Table			
DHCP Config	Pert	ARP Filter	1P Filter	
► ARP	Gi 0/01	Disable	Disable	
+ ARP Config	Gi 0/02	Disable	Disable	
> QoS	Gi 0/03	Disable	Disable	
> Multicast	Gi 0/04	Disable	Disable	
	GI 0/05	Disable Disable	Disable Disable	
> Network Analysis	Gi 0/06 Gi 0/07	Disable	Disable	
Network Equipment	Gi 0/08	Disable	Disable	

Figure 6-6-1

Port type & List: Choose the port you want to set. **ARP Filter:** Whether enable ARP filter on the port. **IP Filter:** Whether enable IP filter on the port.

ARP Binding	
IP Address:	•
MAC Address:	
VLAN ID:	* (1~0004)
Port type:	Fa d/
Port List:	(Don't set trust port.)
DHCP Security Check	x
Port type:	Fe 0/
Port Litt:	(Don't set trust port.)
Security Check Hode:	Dynamic ABP Inspection(DAI)
	OK

Figure 6-6-2

ARP Binding

IP Address: The IP address you want to bind.

MAC Address: The MAC address you want to bind.

VLAN ID: The VLAN ID you want the IP and MAC bind into.

Port type & List: Choose the port you want the IP and MAC bind on. DHCP Security Check:

Port type & List: Choose the port you want to set.

Security Check Mode: There are 4 security check mode, DAI, IP source guard, DAI+IP source guard and none. If choose DAI, that only check ARP pockets, and IP source guard only check IP packets, DAI+IP source guard will check both ARP and IP packets, and none will not check any packets, none by default.

	Port			Status	
	Fa 0/01			NULL	
	Fa 0/02			NULL	
	Fa 0/03			NULL	
	Fa 0/04			NULL	
	Fa 0/05			NULL	
	Fa 0/05			NULL	
	Fa 0/07			NULL	
	Fa 0/05			NULL	
	Fa 0/09			NULL	
	Fa 0/10			NULL	
A total of 28 Per pag	e show 10 💌 First Prev Ne	st Last 1 💌			
DHCP Bind Table					
IP Address	MAC Address	VLAN	Port	Type	Delete
A heating of the Descention	show 5 💌 First Prev Neo	* 1 M T			

Figure 6-6-3

View DHCP security check configuration and DHCP static bind on the switch.

Chapter 7: QoS

Introduction to QoS

Quality of Service (QoS) is a concept concerning service demand and supply. It reflects the ability to meet customer needs. Generally, QoS does not focus on grading services precisely, but on improving services under certain conditions.

In an internet, QoS refers to the ability of the network to forward packets. The evaluation on QoS of a network can be based on different aspects because the network may provide various services. Generally, QoS refers to the ability to provide improved service by addressing the essential issues such as delay, jitter, and packet loss ratio in the packet forwarding process.

Traditional Packet Forwarding Service

In traditional IP networks, packets are treated equally. That is, the FIFO (first in first out) policy is adopted for packet processing. Network resources required for packet forwarding is determined by the order in which packets arrive. All the packets share the resources of the network. Network resources available to the packets completely depend on the time they arrive. This service policy is known as Best-effort, which delivers the packets to their destination with the best effort, with no assurance and guarantee for delivery delay, jitter, packet loss ratio, reliability, and so on.

The traditional Best-Effort service policy is only suitable for applications insensitive to bandwidth and delay, such as WWW, file transfer and E-mail.

New Applications and New Requirements

With the expansion of computer network, more and more networks become part of the Internet. The Internet gains rapid development in terms of scale, coverage and user quantities. More and more users use the Internet as a platform for their services and for data transmission.

Besides the traditional applications such as WWW, E-mail, and FTP, new services are developed on the Internet, such as tele-education, telemedicine, video telephone, videoconference and Video-on-

Demand (VoD). Enterprise users expect to connect their regional branches together using VPN techniques for coping with daily business, for instance, accessing databases or manage remote equipment's through Telnet.

All these new applications have one thing in common, that is, they have special requirements for bandwidth, delay, and jitter. For instance, bandwidth, delay, and jitter are critical for videoconference and VoD. As for other applications, such as transaction processing and Telnet, although bandwidth is not as critical, a too long delay may cause unexpected results. That is, they need to get serviced in time even if congestion occurs.

Newly emerging applications demand higher service performance from IP networks. In addition to simply delivering packets to their destinations, better network services are demanded, such as allocating dedicated bandwidth, reducing packet loss ratio, avoiding congestion, regulating network traffic, and setting priority of the packets. To meet those requirements, the network should be provided with better service capability.

Traffic classification is the basis of all the above-mentioned traffic management technologies. It identifies packets using certain rules and makes differentiated services possible. Traffic policing, traffic shaping, congestion management, and congestion avoidance are methods for implementing network traffic control and network resource management. They are occurrences of differentiated services.

Introduction to QoS Features Traffic Classification

Traffic here refers to service traffic; that is, all the packets passing the switch.

Traffic classification means identifying packets that conform to certain characteristics according to certain rules. It is the foundation for providing differentiated services.

In traffic classification, the priority bit in the type of service (ToS) field in IP packet header can be used to identify packets of different priorities. The network administrator can also define traffic classification policies to identify packets by the combination of source address, destination address, MAC address, IP protocol or the

port number of an application.

Normally, traffic classification is done by checking the information carried in packet header. Packet payload is rarely adopted for traffic classification. The identifying rule is unlimited in range. It can be a quintuplet consisting of source address, source port number, protocol number, destination address, and destination port number. It can also be simply a network segment.

Priority Trust Mode Precedence types

- 1) IP precedence, ToS precedence, and DSCP precedence The ToS field in an IP header contains eight bits numbered 0 through 7, among which
- The first three bits indicate IP precedence in the range 0 to 7.
- Bit 3 to bit 6 indicate ToS precedence in the range of 0 to 15.
- In RFC2474, the ToS field in IP packet header is also known as DS field. The first six bits (bit 0 through bit 5) of the DS field indicate differentiated service code point (DSCP) in the range of 0 to 63, and the last two bits (bit 6 and bit 7) are reserved.

2) 802.1p priority

802.1p priority lies in Layer 2 packet headers and is applicable to occasions where the Layer 3 packet header does not need analysis but QoS must be assured at Layer 2.

3) Local precedence

Local precedence is a locally significant precedence that the device assigns to a packet. A local precedence value corresponds to one of the eight hardware output queues. Packets with the highest local precedence are processed preferentially. As local precedence is used only for internal queuing, a packet does not carry it after leaving the queue.

Configuring Priority trust mode

After a packet enters a switch, the switch sets the 802.1p priority and local precedence for the packet according to its own capability and the corresponding rules.

1) For a packet carrying no 802.1q tag

When a packet carrying no 802.1q tag reaches a port, the switch uses the port priority as the 802.1p precedence value of the received packet, searches for the local precedence corresponding to the port priority of the receiving port in the 802.1p-to-local precedence mapping table, and assigns the local precedence to the packet.

2) For an 802.1q tagged packet

For incoming 802.1q tagged packets, you can configure the switch to trust packet priority or to trust port priority. By default, the switches trust port priority.

• Trusting port priority

In this mode, the switch replaces the 802.1p priority of the received packet with the port priority, searches for the local precedence corresponding to the port priority of the receiving port in the 802.1p-to-local precedence mapping table, and assigns the local precedence to the packet.

• Trusting packet priority

After configuring to trust packet priority, you can specify the trusted priority type, which can be 802.1p priority, DSCP precedence, or IP precedence. With trusting packet priority enabled, the switch trusts the 802.1p priority of received packets.

The switches provide 802.1p-to-local-precedence, DSCP-to-localprecedence, and IP-to-local-precedence mapping tables for priority mapping.

Priority Marking

The priority marking function is to reassign priority for the traffic matching an ACL referenced for traffic classification.

- If 802.1p priority marking is configured, the traffic will be mapped to the local precedence corresponding to the re-marked 802.1p priority and assigned to the output queue corresponding to the local precedence.
- If local precedence marking is configured, the traffic will be assigned to the output queue corresponding to the re-marked local precedence.
- If IP precedence or DSCP marking is configured, the traffic will be marked with new IP precedence or DSCP precedence.

Configuring Queue Scheduling

When the network is congested, the problem that many packets compete for resources must be solved, usually through queue scheduling.

In the following section, strict priority (SP) queues, weighted round robin (WRR), and SP+WRR (High Queue-WRR) queues are introduced.

1) SP queuing

SP queue-scheduling algorithm is specially designed for critical service applications. An important feature of critical services is that they demand preferential service in congestion in order to reduce the response delay. Assume that there are four output queues on the port and the preferential queue classifies the four output queues on the port into four classes, which are queue 3, queue 2, queue 1, and queue 0. Their priorities decrease in order.

In queue scheduling, SP sends packets in the queue with higher priority strictly following the priority order from high to low. When the queue with higher priority is empty, packets in the queue with lower priority are sent. You can put critical service packets into the queues with higher priority and put non-critical service (such as email) packets into the queues with lower priority. In this case, critical service packets are sent preferentially and non-critical service packets are sent when critical service groups are not sent. The disadvantage of SP queue is that: if there are packets in the queues with higher priority for a long time in congestion, the packets in the queues with lower priority will be "starved" because they are not served.

2) WRR queuing

WRR queue-scheduling algorithm schedules all the queues in turn and every queue can be assured of a certain service time. Assume there are four output queues on a port. WRR configures a weight value for each queue, which is w3, w2, w1, and w0 for queue 3 through queue 0. The weight value indicates the proportion of obtaining resources. On a 100 M port, configure the weight value of WRR queue-scheduling algorithm to 5, 3, 1, and 1 (corresponding to w3, w2, w1, and w0 in order). In this way, the queue with the lowest priority can get 10 Mbps bandwidth (100-Mbps \times 1/ (5 + 3 + 1 + 1)) at least, and the disadvantage of SP queue-scheduling that the packets in queues with lower priority may not get service for a long time is avoided.

Another advantage of WRR queue is that: though the queues are scheduled in order, the service time for each queue is not fixed; that is to say, if a queue is empty, the next queue will be scheduled. In this way, the bandwidth resources are made full use.

3) SP+WRR queuing

SP+WRR is an improvement over WRR. Assume there are four priority queues on a port and queue 3 allocated with the highest priority, the switch will ensure that this queue get served first and will perform round-robin scheduling to the other three queues when the traffic has exceeded the bandwidth capacity of a port.

7.1 Qos Information

		11111111111111111111111111111111111111				
	🛢 Home	Option82 Config 🛞 Op	tion82 Policy 🗷	ARP Config 🖹 QoS	Information 🖬	welcome guest ! exit
SG3226FP	Qos Status:					
> System						
> SNMP		Status:	OEnable	Otsable		
> Port Management			OK	_		
			UK			
> Redundancy						
> Security	Trust Hode					
> QoS			802.1p-Based	Y		
 QoS Information 		Trust Prode:	802.1p-Based	•		
 Dscp Queue Mapping 			OK			
+ 1p-Queue Mapping						
+ Port Default Priority						
+ Queue Scheduling	Rewrite Hod	e				
> Multicast		Rewrite CoS:	OEnable	Disable		
> Network Analysis						
> Network Equipment		Rewrite DSCP:	Otneble	Disable		
> Advanced Setup			OK			

Figure 7-1-1

Trust mode: There are 4 trust modes, port-based, 1p, dscp and 1p+dscp.

Rewrite CoS: If you want to rewrite 1p-priority with packets, you must enable rewrite cos first.

Rewrite DSCP: If you want to rewrite DSCP with packets, you must enable rewrite DSCP first.

7.2 DSCP Queue Mapping

SG3226FP	Home Option82 Policy (a) ARP Config (a) QoS In Dscp Queue Map	formation 🗶 Disco Queue Mapping 🗈	welcome guest ! (
> System	DSCP:	(0-63)	
> SNMP > Port Management	Queue	(0-7)	
Redundancy	OK		
> Security			
 QoS Information 	View Dscp Queue Map		
+ Dscp Queue Mapping	Dscp	Queue	
+ 1p-Queue Mapping	0		
· Port Default Priority	1	0	
Queue Scheduling	2	0	
> Multicast	4	0	
> Network Analysis	5	0	
> Network Equipment	6 7	0	
	7 8		
> Advanced Setup	9	1	
	A total of 64 Per page show 10 Y First Prev	Next Last 1 ¥	



Internal priority: The initializing dscp values with packets. Queue: The queue you want the dscp of packets map to. View dscp queue map: View dscp values to queue mapped table.

Internal priority:	(0-7)
DSCP Mapped(DSCP Rewrite):	(0-63)
	ОК
p Status	
DSCP	DSCP Mapped
DSCP	DSCP Mapped
0 1	DSCP Mapped 0
0	0
0	0
0 1 2	0 1 2
0 1 2 3	0 1 2 3
0 1 2 3 4	0 1 2 3 4
0 1 2 3 4 5	0 1 2 3 4 5



Internal priority: The initializing dscp values with packets. DSCP Mapped (DSCP Rewrite): The new dscp values you want to rewrite.

L3Map Status: View DSCP rewrite mapped table.

7.3 802.1p-Queue Mapping

	B Home ARP Canfig 🗟 QoS Information 🛞 Docp Queue M	Repping 20 12-Queue Happing ED	welcome guest
SG3226FP	Set 802.1 p - Queue Map		
> System			
SNMP	802.1p Priority	(8-7)	
Port Management	Queue	(8-7)	
Port Management Redundancy			
	OK		
> Security			
> QoS	View 802.1 p - Queue Map		
 QoS Information 			
 Dscp Queue Mapping 	882.1p Priority	Queue	
+ 1p-Queue Mapping	0		
· Port Default Priority	1	1	
+ Queue Scheduling	2	2	
> Multicast	1	4	
> Network Analysis	5	5	
	6	6	
> Network Equipment	7	7	
> Advanced Setup	A total of 8 Per page show 10 🌱 First Prev Next	Lat 1 V	
	12Hee		

Figure 7-3-1

CosMapped (Cos Rewrite): The initializing 1p priority values with packets.

Queue: The queue you want the 1p of packets map to. View 802.1p-queue map: View 1p to queue map table.

ар		
	802.1p: 0	
CoSMapped(Cos Re	ewrite): 0	
	ОК	
	on	
ap Status		
		Coll Manual (Con Davida)
802.1p		CoS Mapped(Cos Rewrite)
		CoS Mapped(Cos Rewrite) 0
802.1p		
802.1p		
802.1p 0 1		0
802.1p 0 1 2		0 1 2
802.1p 0 1 2 3		0 1 2 3
802.1p 0 1 2 3 4		0 1 2 3 4

Figure 7-3-2

802.1p: The initializing 1p priority values with packets.

CosMapped (Cos Rewrite): The new 1p values you want to rewrite. **L2Map Status:** View 1p rewrite mapped table.

7.4 Port Default Priority

	AND CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR O		-
	B Home QeS Information (8) Ducp Quote Mappi	ng III Ip Quoue Mapping III Port Default Printy D	welcome guest ! call
SG3226FP	Set port the default priority		
> System			
> SNMP	Port Type: Gi 4/	V	
	Part		
Port Management			
Redundancy	Priarity	* (0-7)	
> Security			
2 QoS	OK		
 OeS Information 			
+ Dicp Queue Napping	default priority view port		
12-Ourur Mapping			
Port Default Priority	Part	Priority	
	Gi 6/81	0	
 Queue Scheduling 	GI 8/82	0	
> Multicast	GI 8/80	0	
	GI 0/04	0	
> Network Analysis	GI B/BS	0	
Network Equipment		0	
> Advanced Setup	GI 8/87	0	
 Auvanced Setup 	GI 0/08	0	
	Gi 8/09	0	
	/G 8/18	0	

Figure 7-4-1

Port Type & List: The port you want to set.

Priority: Priority values you want the packets through the port to be. **Default priority view port:** View port to priority map table.

	🗧 Home 🛛 Dscp Queue Mapping 🖃 1p-Qu	eue Mapping 🖹 🛛 Port Default Priority	Queue Scheduling 🛛	welcome guest ! e
SG3226FP	Queue Scheduling			
> System				
> SNMP	Queue	(0-7)		
	Type: WRR	×		
Port Management				
Redundancy	Weight	(1.8)		
> Security				
> QoS		OK		
 QoS Information 				
Dscp Queue Mapping	Check the Queue Table			
+ 1p-Queue Mapping				
Port Default Priority	Queue	Туре	Weight	
	7	strict	strict	
 Queue Scheduling 	6	strict	strict	
> Multicast	5	strict	strict	
> Network Analysis	4	strict	strict	
	2	strict	strict	
> Network Equipment	2	strict	strict	
> Advanced Setup		strict	strict	
		st Prev Next Last 1 ¥		

7.5 Queue Scheduling



Strategy: choose mode of queue scheduling, there are 3 mode: WRR, Strict and SP+WRR.

Check the queue table: View scheduling of all the 8 queues, and weight of every queue.

Chapter 8: Multicast

Understanding IGMP Snooping

Layer 2 switches can use IGMP snooping to constrain the flooding of multicast traffic by dynamically configuring Layer 2 interfaces so that multicast traffic is forwarded to only those interfaces associated with IP multicast devices. As the name implies, IGMP snooping requires the LAN switch to snoop on the IGMP transmissions between the host and the router and to keep track of multicast groups and

member ports. When the switch receives an IGMP report from a host for a particular multicast group, the switch adds the host port number to the forwarding table entry: when it receives an IGMP Leave Group message from a host, it removes the host port from the table entry. It also periodically deletes entries if it does not receive IGMP membership reports from the multicast clients. The multicast router sends out periodic IGMP general queries to all VLANs. When IGMP snooping is enabled, the switch responds to the router queries with only one join request per MAC multicast group. and the switch creates one entry per VLAN in the Laver 2 forwarding table for each MAC group from which it receives an IGMP ioin request. All hosts interested in this multicast traffic send join requests and are added to the forwarding table entry. Laver 2 multicast groups learned through IGMP snooping are dynamic. However, you can statically configure MAC multicast groups. If you specify group membership for a multicast group address statically, your setting supersedes any automatic manipulation by IGMP snooping. Multicast group membership lists can consist of both user-defined and IGMP snooping-learned settings.

IGMP Versions

The switch supports IGMP version 1, IGMP version 2, and IGMP version 3. These versions are interoperable on the switch. For example, if IGMP snooping is enabled on an IGMPv2 switch and the switch receives an IGMPv3 report from a host, the switch can forward the IGMPv3 report to the multicast router.

Joining a Multicast Group

When a host connected to the switch wants to join an IP multicast group, it sends an unsolicited IGMP join message, specifying the IP multicast group to join. Alternatively, when the switch receives a general query from the router, it forwards the query to all ports in the VLAN. Hosts wanting to join the multicast group respond by sending a join message to the switch. The switch CPU creates a multicast forwarding-table entry for the group if it is not already present. The CPU also adds the interface where the join message was received to the forwarding-table entry. The host associated with that interface receives multicast traffic for that multicast group.

Leaving a Multicast Group

The router sends periodic multicast general queries and the switch forwards these queries through all ports in the VLAN. Interested hosts respond to the queries. If at least one host in the VLAN wishes to receive multicast traffic, the router continues forwarding the multicast traffic to the VLAN. The switch forwards multicast group traffic to only those hosts listed in the forwarding table for that Layer 2 multicast group.

When hosts want to leave a multicast group, they can either silently leave, or they can send a leave message. When the switch receives a leave message from a host, it sends out a MAC-based general query to determine if any other devices connected to that interface are interested in traffic for the specific multicast group. The switch then updates the forwarding table for that MAC group so that only those hosts interested in receiving multicast traffic for the group are listed in the forwarding table. If the router receives no reports from a VLAN, it removes the group for the VLAN from its IGMP cache.

Immediate-Leave Processing

Immediate Leave is only supported with IGMP version 2 hosts. The switch uses IGMP snooping Immediate-Leave processing to remove from the forwarding table an interface that sends a leave message without the switch sending MAC-based general queries to the interface. The VLAN interface is pruned from the multicast tree for the multicast group specified in the original leave message. Immediate-Leave processing ensures optimal bandwidth management for all hosts on a switched network, even when multiple multicast groups are simultaneously in use.

IGMP Report Suppression

The switch uses IGMP report suppression to forward only one IGMP report per multicast router query to multicast devices. When IGMP router suppression is enabled (the default), the switch sends the first IGMP report from all hosts for a group to all the multicast routers. The switch does not send the remaining IGMP reports for the group to the multicast routers. This feature prevents duplicate reports from

being sent to the multicast devices.

If the multicast router query includes requests only for IGMPv1 and IGMPv2 reports, the switch forwards only the first IGMPv1 or IGMPv2 report from all hosts for a group to all the multicast routers. If the multicast router query also includes requests for IGMPv3 reports, the switch forwards all IGMPv1, IGMPv2, and IGMPv3 reports for a group to the multicast devices.

If you disable IGMP report suppression, all IGMP reports are forwarded to the multicast routers.

Understanding Multicast VLAN Registration

Multicast VLAN Registration (MVR) is designed for applications using wide-scale deployment of multicast traffic across an Ethernet ringbased service provider network (for example, the broadcast of multiple television channels over a service-provider network). MVR allows a subscriber on a port to subscribe and unsubscribe to a multicast stream on the network-wide multicast VLAN. It allows the single multicast VLAN to be shared in the network wile subscribers remain in separate VLANs. MVR provides the ability to continuously send multicast streams in the multicast VLAN, but to isolate the streams from the subscriber VLANs for bandwidth and security reasons.

MVR assumes that subscriber ports subscribe and unsubscribe (join and leave) these multicast streams by sending out IGMP join and leave messages. These messages can originate from an IGMP version-2-compatible host with an Ethernet connection. Although MVR operates on the underlying mechanism of IGMP snooping, the two features operate independently of each other. One can be enabled or disabled without affecting the behavior of the other feature. However, if IGMP snooping and MVR are both enabled, MVR reacts only to join and leave messages from multicast groups configured under MVR. Join and leave messages from all other multicast groups are managed by IGMP snooping.

The switch CPU identifies the MVR IP multicast streams and their associated MAC addresses in the switch forwarding table, intercepts the IGMP messages, and modifies the forwarding table to include or remove the subscriber as a receiver of the multicast stream, even though the receivers might be in a different VLAN from the source.

This forwarding behavior selectively allows traffic to cross between different VLANs.

8.1 IGMP Snooping

	400 00000 				
	B Home 1p-Queue Mapping 🗟	Port Default Priority 🗷	Queue Scheduling	🖹 IGMP Snooping 🖬	
SG3226FP	IGMP Snooping VLAN Status				
³ System		E DEnable	O Disable		
> SNMP	Stetu	E () Enable	O Disable		
> Port Management	VI	k .			
> Redundancy		OK			
> Security		UK			
> QoS					
> Multicast	IGMP Snooping				
+ IGMP Snooping	Forward All Leave Messag	Enable	Oisable		
+ Cross VLAN	Forward Unknown Multicas	 Enable 	O Disable		
 IGMP Route Port 					
 IGMP Port Policy 	Immediate-Leav	E Chable	O Disable		
+ IGMP Group Policy		OK			
> Network Analysis					
> Network Equipment	View VLAN OF IGMP Group				
> Advanced Setup	VIEW VEAM OF LGMP Group				
	VID	VLAN Na	me		Status

Figure 8-1-1

IGMP Snooping:

IGMP Snooping Status: set state of IGMP Snooping, enable or disable.

Forward All Leave Message: Whether forward all leave messages. Forward Unknown Multicast: Whether forward unknown multicast packets.

Immediate-leave: Whether run immediate-leave.

View Multicast:

View Multicast Groups information here.

8.2 Cross VLAN

	8 Nome Port Default Priority II Queue Scheduling II IGMP Snooping II Gross VLAN K	welcome_guest ! 🛃
SG3226FP	Cross VLAN	
> System		
> SNMP	Cross VLAN: O Enable	
> Port Management	OK	
Redundancy	UN	
> Security		
> QoS		
> Multicast		
 IGMP Snooping 		
+ Cross VLAN		
 IGMP Route Port 		
 IGMP Part Policy 		
 IGMP Group Policy 		
> Network Analysis		
> Network Equipment		
> Advanced Setup		



Cross VLAN: enable or disable.

VID: input vid, by which VLAN you want to implement cross-VLAN.

8.3 IGMP Route Port

		- <u>1</u> - <u>1</u> - <u>1</u>
SG3226FP	Kome Queere Scheduling IGNP Snotping Cross VLNN KomP Route Part Hulticast Routing Port	welcome guest ! exit
> System	Port Type: Gr 0/	
 > Port Management 	Port List:	
Redundancy	VLAN Type: Normal VLAN	
> Security	VID(1-4094): =	
 QoS Multicast 1GMP Sneeping 	OK	
+ Cross VLAN	Aging Time Configuration	
+ 3GMP Route Port + 3GMP Port Policy	Group member Aging Time: 260 * (100-65535,in seconds)	
+ IGMP Group Policy	Dynamic route Aging Time: 36000 * (100-65535,3n seconds)	
> Network Analysis > Network Equipment	OK	
> Advanced Setup	View Hulticast Routing Port Configuration	

Figure 8-3-1

Multicast Routing Port:

Port Type & List: Choose a port which you want to set it be routing port.

VLAN Type: This routing port belongs to normal VLAN or cross-VLAN. If choose cross-VLAN, you must choose egress rule is tagged or untagged.

VID: Input VLAN ID if it belongs to normal VLAN.

Aging Time Configuration:

Group member Aging Time: Input time in range 100-65535. Dynamic route Aging Time: Input time in range 100-65535.

View Multicast Routing Port Configuration:

View routing port on switch.

8.4 IGMP Port Policy

. \		
SG3226FP	B Home IGMP Snooping Cross VLAN B IGMP Route Part B IGMP Port Policy B	welcome guest ! e
5G3226FP	IGHP Port Policy Configuration	
> System	Part Type: GI 0/	
> SNMP		
> Port Management	Port List: =	
³ Redundancy	VLAN Type: Normal Vian	
> Security	V2Dr * (1-4094)	
> QoS	3GMP Policy Number: * (0-100)	
> Multicast	Mark Loads (0-200)	
+ IGMP Snooping	OK	
+ Cross VEAN		
+ IGMP Route Port	View IGMP Port Policy Configuration	
+ IGMP Port Policy		
+ IGMP Group Policy	Port Policy Number VID VLAN Name Delete	
> Network Analysis	A total of 0 Per page show 5 🌱 First Prev Next Last	
> Network Equipment	1	
> Advanced Setup		

Figure 8-4-1

IGMP Port Policy Configuration:

Port Type & List: Input which port you want to set.

VLAN Type: This port belongs to normal VLAN or cross-VLAN.

VID: Which VLAN ID this port belongs to.

IGMP Policy Number: Input how many multicast groups you want to limit on this port.

View IGMP Port Policy Configuration:

View configuration of policy on ports.

8.5 IGMP Group Policy

	8 Home Cross VLAN 🗟 IGMP Route Port 🗟 IGMP Port Policy 🗟 IGMP Group Policy 🛙	
SG3226FP	Port Hulticast Group Control	
> System		
SNMP	Index: * (1-24)	
Port Management	Multicast Group IP Start:	
> Redundancy	Multicast Group IP Start End:	
> Security	Adien: @denv Opermit	
) QoS	Arrange County Operate	
> Multicast	OK	
+ IGMP Snotping		
+ Cross VLAN	View Port Multicast Group Control	
+ IGMP Route Port		
+ IGMP Port Policy	Index Multicast range group Action Delete	
+ IGMP Group Policy	A total of 0 Per page show 5 V First Prev Next Last V	
> Network Analysis	IGMP Policy Application	
> Network Equipment		
> Advanced Setup	Port Type: Gi 0/	
	Part List:	

Figure 8-5-1

Port Multicast Group Control:

Index: Create a policy; first input any index in range 1-24 Multicast Group IP: Then input a multicast group IP which you want to deny.

View Port Multicast Group Control:

View how many and what policies set on switch.

IGMP Policy Application:

Port Type & List: Which port you want to set. VLAN Type: This port belongs to normal or cross VLAN. VID: If normal, please input the VLAN ID. Index: Input index you created, which deny policy you want to set on this port.

View IGMP Application Policy:

View configuration of which port denied to join into which group

Chapter 9: Network Analysis

9.1 Traffic Counter

This part you can see the counter of packets.

		-104
SG3226FP	Home IGMP Group Palicy (E) Traffic Counter (E) Minror(SPAN)/RSPAN) (E) Pag (E) Work ACL Counter	welcome guest ! en
> System	Counter Name Packets	
> SNMP	A total of 0 Per page show 5 V First Prev Next Last	
> Port Management	A total of 0 Per page stow 2 * Prist Prev Nett Last *	
> Redundancy	Refresh	
> Security		
^{>} QoS		
> Multicast		
> Network Analysis		
+ Traffic Counter		
 Mirror(SPAN/RSPAN) 		
+ Ping		
+ Log		
> Network Equipment		
> Advanced Setup		

Figure 9-1-1

9.2 Port Mirror

SG3226FP		SMP Group Policy 🖹 Traffic Counter 🖹	Herer(SPAN/RSPAN)	welcome guest ! ex
	Capture Settings			
> System	Trees	Local Span		
> SNMP				
> Port Management	Capture status:	Diseble 👻		
Redundancy		OK		
> Security		UN.		
2 QoS	Capture Configuration			
> Multicast	Capture Comparation			
> Network Analysis	Pert	Entry List	Export List	
+ Traffic Counter	Gi 0/01			
+ Mirror(SPAN/RSPAN)	Gi 0/02			
+ Ping	Gi 0/03			
+ Log	Gi 0/04			
> Network Equipment	Gi 0/05			
> Advanced Setup	Gi 0/05			
- Harmon accep	Gi 0/07			
	Gi 0/03			
Save Parameters	Gi 0/09			

Figure 9-2-1

				- 遭
SG3226FP	Home Home(SPAN, 1024AN) E			welcome guest t exit
00022011	Capture Settings			
> System		Local Span *		
> SNMP				
Port Management	Capture status:	Enable *		
> Redundancy	Cepture Port:	GI 0/01 *		
> Security				
> QoS		OK		
> Multicast				
> Network Analysis	Capture Configuration			
+ Traffic Counter	Pat	Entry List	Export List	
+ Mirror(SPAN/RSPAN)	GI 0/01			
+ Ping	Gi 0/02			
+ Log	Ci 0/03			
	GI 0/04			
Network Equipment				
> Network Equipment > Advanced Setup	G 0/05		0	

Figure 9-2-2

Capture Settings:

The part is the mirror port settings.

Type: Choose capture type, there are 3 mode: Local Span, Source RSpan and Destination RSpan.

Capture status: Set state of mirror function.

Capture port: Choose capture port, which port you want to capture mirror packets.

Capture Configuration:

The part is set by the mirror port. Check the port and direction you want to mirror.

Entry List: Mirror the data packets entered from this port.

Export List: Mirroring the data packets out of port.

9.3 Ping

		÷
5G3226FP	8 Home SIAP Group Policy 🗟 Traffic Counter 🗟 Home(SIA(NSIAR) 🗟) Parg 🛙	velcome gaent ! en
0012017	Pag	
> System	P address: OK	
> SNMP		
Port Management		
> Redundancy		
> Security		
² Q15		
Multicast		
Network Analysis		
 Traffic Counter 		
+ Himar(SPAN(RSRAN)		
+ Ping		
+ Log		
Network Equipment		
Advanced Setup		

Figure 9-3-1

Input IP address you want to ping, press OK then view the result below.

9.4 Log





You can set the log server and log degree.

Chapter10: Network Equipment

10.1 Loopback Detection

		- 1- 1- - 1 - - 1 - - 1 - - 1 - - 1 -
SG3226FP	B Home Minor(SPAN(RSPAN)) Ping (k) Log (k) Lo	welcome guest ! exit
3032201 F	Loopback-detection Configuration	
> System	Status: OEnable Disable	
> SNMP		
Port Management	Threshold: 1 *(1-10000pit)	
Redundancy	Interval: 3 *(1-3500)	
> Security	OK	
> QoS	UN	
> Multicast		
Network Analysis	Loopback-detection Control	
Network Equipment	Pert Type: GL 0/	
+ Loopback Detection	Port List:	
> Advanced Setup	Control: Interval	
	Contrac Interval	
> Save Parameters	OK	
) sale ranalization		
	Man Lookada data dina saskad	

Figure 10-1-1

Loopback-detection Configuration:

State: Whether enable loopback-detection function on switch. **Threshold:** Set the threshold of packets.

Inreshold: Set the threshold of packets.

Interval: Set time interval to send packets.

Loopback-detection Control:

Port Type & List: Choose the port you want to set.

Control: Mode of port control. If there is loop occurs, how to deal with port state.

There are 3 modes: Interval means wait for an interval then the port still turn to forwarding state, but ports cannot turn to forwarding state in always and close mode.

View loopback-detection control:

View the port configuration of loopback-detection.

Chapter11: Advanced Setup

11.1 GVRP

Introduction to GVRP

GARP VLAN registration protocol (GVRP) is an implementation of generic attribute registration protocol (GARP). GARP is introduced as follows.

GARP

The generic attribute registration protocol (GARP), provides a mechanism that allows participants in a GARP application to distribute, propagate, and register with other participants in a bridged LAN the attributes specific to the GARP application, such as the VLAN or multicast attribute.

GARP itself does not exist on a device as an entity. GARP-compliant application entities are called GARP applications. One example is GVRP. When a GARP application entity is present on a port on your device, this port is regarded a GARP application entity.

Operating mechanism of GARP

Through the mechanism of GARP, the configuration information on a GARP member will be propagated within the whole LAN. A GARP member can be a terminal workstation or a bridge; it instructs other GARP members to register/deregister its attribute information by declaration/recant, and register/deregister other GARP member's attribute information according to other member's

declaration/recant. When a port receives an attribute declaration, the port will register this attribute.

When a port receives an attribute recant, the port will deregister this attribute.

The protocol packets of GARP entities use specific multicast MAC addresses as their destination MAC addresses. When receiving these packets, the switch distinguishes them by their destination MAC addresses and delivers them to different GARP application (for example, GVRP) for further processing.

GVRP

As an implementation of GARP, GARP VLAN registration protocol (GVRP) maintains dynamic VLAN registration information and propagates the information to the other switches through GARP. With GVRP enabled on a device, the VLAN registration information received by the device from other devices is used to dynamically update the local VLAN registration information, including the information about the VLAN members, the ports through which the VLAN members can be reached, and so on. The device also propagates the local VLAN registration information to other devices so that all the devices in the same LAN can have the same VLAN information. VLAN registration information propagated by GVRP includes static VLAN registration information, which is manually configured locally on each device, and dynamic VLAN registration information, which is received from other devices.

Protocol Specifications

GVRP is defined in IEEE 802.1Q standard.

11.1.1 GVRP Config

	Home Ping X Log X Loopback Detection X GVRP Config X	wekome guest ! exit
SG3226FP	GVRP Global Configuration	
> System	GVRP Global Status: O Enable	
> SNMP	GANG CHICAN STREAM	
> Port Management	OK	
> Redundancy		
> Security	GVRP Configuration	
> QoS		
> Multicast	Port Type: Gi 0/	
> Network Analysis	Port List: *	
> Network Equipment	Applicant: Normal	
^{>} Advanced Setup	Registration: Normal	
+ GVRP	3eis timer: 20 " (10-1000)	
 GVRP Config 		
 GVRP Vian Info 	Leave time: 100 * (30-30000)	
▶ SSH	Leave All timer: 1000 * (65-32765)	
WEBCLI	~	

Figure 11-1-1

GVRP Global Setting: Enable or disable GVRP function on switch. **Port Type & List:** Choose the port you want to set.

Applicant: Set applicant state, there 2 modes: Normal and non-applicant.

Registration: Set registration state, there 3 modes: Normal, Fixed and Forbidden.

Join timer: Input time number between 10-10000 Leave timer: Input time number between 30-30000 Leave all timer: Input time number between 65-32865 GVRP Status: View GVRP status on switch

11.1.2 GVRP VLAN Info

	`				** ****	
e -		🗧 Home 🛛 Log 🖹	Loopback Detection 🛞 GVRP Con	Ig (8) OVRP Vian Info (8)		welcome guest ! exit
	SG3226FP	GVRP VLAN Group In	formation			
	> System	Pvid	VLAN Name	Static Ports	Dynamic Ports	
	> SNMP			Gi 0/01 Gi 0/02 Gi 0/03 Gi		
	Port Management			0/04 GI 0/05 GI 0/06 GI 0/07 GI 0/08		
	Redundancy		default vian	Gi 0/09 Gi 0/10 Gi 0/11 Gi 0/12 Gi 0/13 Gi 0/14 Gi 0/15		
	> Security		delaux vian	Gi 0/16 Gi 0/17 Gi 0/18 Gi 0/19 Gi		
	> QoS			0/20 Gi 0/21 Gi 0/22 Gi 0/23 Gi 0/24 Gi 0/25 Gi 0/26		
	> Multicast	A total of 1 P	er page show 10 🌱 First Prev	Next Last 1 ¥		
	Network Analysis					
	> Network Equipment					
	> Advanced Setup					
	» GVRP					
	GVRP Canfig					
	+ GVRP Vian Info					
	▶ 55H					
	+ WEBCLI					

Figure 11-1-2

View VLAN group information on switch.

11.2 SSH 11.2.1 SSH Configuration



Figure 11-2-1

SSH Server Status: Whether enable SSH server. If enable, configure some parameters below.

MAX Session: Configure max SSH session.

Max Auth Fall Time: Configure max auth fall time.

Login Grace Time: Configure login grace time.

11.2.2 SSH User Auth Mode

SG3226FP	Home GVRP Config GVRP Vian Info SSH Configuration SSH User Auth Mode	welcome guest ! exit
5G3226FP	Listen Login Mode Configuration	
> System	Allow mode: Any O(Only	
> SNMP	And the Control Control	
Port Management	OK	
Redundancy		
Security	View SSH User Information	
> QuS		
> Multicast	1D Usemame	
Network Analysis	A total of 1 Per page show 10 V First Prev Next Last 1 V	
> Network Equipment		
> Advanced Setup		
▶ GVRP		
▶ 55H		
+ 55H Caefiguration		
+ SSH User Auth Hode		
+ 55H Auth And Import		
+ WEBCLI		

Figure 11-2-2

Listen Login Mode Configuration: Allow mode: Choose allow mode, any or only. View SSH User Information: This is the system login user name.

	B Home SSH User Auth Mode 2
\$G3226FP	Listen Login Mode Configuration
> System	Allow mode: Any Only
> SNMP	Allow mode: Any O Only
> Port Management	OK
> Redundancy	
> Security	View SSH User Information
> QoS	
> Multicast	ID Username
Network Analysis	2 admin
Network Equipment	
> Advanced Setup	
► GVRP	
▶ SSH	
 SSH Configuration 	
+ SSH User Auth Mode	
 SSH Auth And Import 	
+ WEBCLI	

Figure 11-2-3

If you set the admin user name in the [System] - [View Userser information] directory, it will also be displayed here. Then you can set any or only as needed. If you select only, you can enter guest or admin.

😬 Home 🛛 SSH Use	r Auth Mode 🛛	View User Inform	mation 🗵		
Listen Login Mode Co	nfiguration				
	Allow mode:	⊖ Any	Only		
	Username:	admin			
		ОК			
View SSH User Inform	nation				
ID				Username	
1				guest	
2				admin	
A total of 2 Pe	er page show 10	 First Prev 	Next Last 1 🔻		

Figure 11-2-4

11.2.3 SSH Auth and Import



Figure 11-2-3

SSH Authentication Mode Settings: Authentication mode: password, public key, or both.

Username: Input username.

User Host IP: Input user host IP address.

Public Key Algorithm: Set algorithm of public key, RSA or DSA. **Key File:** Choose a key file.

11.3 Web Cli

Selective QinQ Overview

In this way, you can configure the switch as console without console cable.



Figure 11-3-1

Chapter 12: Save Parameters



Figure 12-1-1

Press "OK", this can make parameters saved, your configuration will still work after restart.

Chapter 13: FAQ

13.1 Link status indicator don't shows normal (Link-Error)

View the link end is connected to a PC card or other Ethernet interface;

Check that, the joint at ends of the cable is rust or damaged; Use WEB to check this port's communication configuration (duplex, speed), to make sure configuration the same as another end of link's. **Caution**: If both ends' duplex and speed are forced to be set, one link's configuration have to match with another's, otherwise it is unable to establish a connection.

13.2 Link status indicator show normal but can't communication

When this happens, please do as follows:

Use WEB form (Show in "Port state search") to check whether the port is stopped or not, if the port was stopped, use a WEB form (Show in "Port configuration") to open the port:

Use WEB form to check whether the port is in the isolated VLAN or not, compared with other ports: Ports' communication can only be accessed, when they are in the same VLAN.

13.3 Can't login to manage switch

Please do as follows to check the switch:

Check whether the switch is power on or not:

Check for link failures: Use "PING" to check switch's response: if no response, check whether the IP address configuration of switch and PC is correct or not: If that, you can determine the cause of the problem, according to the feedback information of HTTP connection.

Check the IP address setting

Please do as follows to check the switch:

- Check whether the PCs IP address. subnet mask and default gateway is your expectation setting or not: Please input "ipconfig" in Windows command to check the PC's IP address configurations.
- Check whether the switch IP address, subnet mask and default gateway is your expectation Setting or not:
- Check whether the switch IP address is occupied by another equipment or not.

Check the login account

When login via WEB form, if switch continuously request user to enter account and password, this maybe remind that the account don't exist or password invalid.

13.4 Switch start-up failure

If switch can't successfully start through CONSOLE connection, please do as follows:

- Check whether the serial port number is correct or not: usually COM1 and COM2;
- Make sure the software configuration as follows: 115200bPS, 8 data bits. 1 stop bits, and no odd and parity checking, no flow control:
- Check the Serial Port status in the device management of Windows, and connect the switch using the HyperTerminal of The Windows tools detecting the failure of the connection.
- Make sure no other program is in the use of the serial port: Any

serial port can't be used by program more than one at the same time in Windows operating systems.

13.5 Power failure

Check the power indicator light, if indicator light goes out, the power supply connection may be bad, please make sure the power supply is normal, and check whether the connection between switch and the power is stable and reliable or not.

Hereby Assmann Electronic GmbH, declares that the Declaration of Conformity is part of the shipping content. If the Declaration of Conformity is missing, you can request it by post under the below mentioned manufacturer address.

www.assmann.com

Assmann Electronic GmbH Auf dem Schüffel 3 58513 Lüdenscheid Germany

